
   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 8, 2017 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Accept comments from the public. 
 

3. Approve minutes from the January 11, 2017 meeting. 
 

4. Routine items for February 8, 2017. 
 

a. Approve certifications of membership. 
b. Approve service and disability allowances. 
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
d. Approve death benefits. 
e. Accept Asset Allocation Report 

 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

5. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) 
  
Agency designated representatives: 
Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 
Christina Dunn, Admin/HR Manager 
Joe Wiley, CCCERA's Chief Negotiator 
 
Employee Organization: AFSCME, Local 2700 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

6. The Board will go into closed session under Gov. Code Section 54957 to consider 
recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following disability 
retirement applications: 
 
          Member           Type Sought            Recommendation 

a. Toni Harris                          Service Connected                      Service Connected 
b. Dean Soltis                          Service Connected                      Service Connected 

 
7. The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) to 

confer with legal counsel regarding potential litigation (one case). 
 

8. The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1) to confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 
 

a. In the Matter of the Estate of Margaret O. Richards, Circuit Court of the State of 
 Oregon, Multnomah County, Case No. 14PB01866. 
 

 
OPEN SESSION 
 

9. Consider and take possible action to adjust the retirement allowance of retired Hazardous 
Materials Specialists IIs pursuant to Government Code Section 31539 to exclude compensation 
improperly increased by the members: 
 

a. Presentation of report and recommendations; Board questions 
b. Opportunity for the retired members to present to the Board their positions and 

any information or records relevant to the issue; Board questions 
c. Opportunity for the retired members’ former employer, Contra Costa County, to 

present to the Board its position and any information or records relevant to the 
issue; Board questions 

d. Public comment 
e. Board deliberations and appropriate action 

 
10. Consider and take possible action to provide additional clarification and direction pertaining to 

further review of Mr. Andrews’ pension. 
 

11. Consider and take possible action to adopt a cost-of-living increase for retirees as of April 1, 
2017. 
 

12. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 
 

a. Public Funds Roundtable, Institutional Investor Public Funds Roundtable, 
Intuitional Investor, April 26-28, 2017, Los Angeles, CA  

b. Portfolio Concepts and Management, International Foundation of Employee 
Benefit   Plans, May 1-4, 2017, Philadelphia, PA 

 
13. Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report 
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 
 

 



Present: 

Absent: 

Staff: 

~~CCCERA 

Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

Agenda Item 
#3 

Employees' Retirement Association 

MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
January 11,2017 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, David 
MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey and Rusty 
Watts 

Jerry Telles 

Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen 
Levy, General Counsel; Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Christina Dunn, 
Administrative/HR Manager; Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, 
Retirement Services Manager; and Alexis Cox, Member Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 
Joe Wiley Wiley Price & Radulovich LLP 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Gordon led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Recognition of Luz Casas for 20 years of service 

Phillips recognized and congratulated Luz Casas for her years of service. 

3. Accept comments from the public 

No member of the public offered comment. 

4. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the December 14, 2016 meeting with a correction to the 
numbering on Item 13. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and 
Watts. Abs.: Gordon). 

5. Routine Items 

It was MlS/C to approve the routine items of the January 11, 2017 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 
Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 



CLOSED SESSION 

Page 2 
January 11, 2017 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.6, 54956.9(d)(1), 54957 and 
54956.9( d)(2). 

The Board moved into open session. 

6. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 

7. There was no reportable action related to Govt Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 

8. It was MlS/C to accept the Medical Advisor's recommendation and grant the following disability 
benefits: 

a. Spencer Chun - Non-Service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

b. Richard Perry - Service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

c. Kyle Sevier - Service Connected (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

d. This item was referred back to the Medical Advisor for an Independent Medical Evaluation. 
e. This item was referred back to the Medical Advisor for an Independent Medical Evaluation. 

9. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9( d)(2). 

Gordon and Pigeon were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

10. Legislative Update 

Levy reviewed her memo on recently enacted legislation. She discussed AB 1661, which requires 
sexual harassment prevention training for all Trustees and AB 1692 which authorizes the Board of 
Supervisors of Contra Costa County to require the application of the Tier III disability standard 
(substantial gainful employment, Government Code Section 31720.l), Tier III disability amounts and 
Tier III COLA amounts to general (non-safety) PEPRA members for who the Board of Supervisors is 
the governing board. She also discussed AB 2833 and its requirement for greater transparency of 
investment management fees. Among other things, the bill requires public pension systems to 
disclose the fee information received at least once annually at a meeting open to the public. 

11. Update from Chief Investment Officer on implementation of Liguidity sub-portfolio 

Price gave an update on portfolio liquidations. He stated that over the course of the 10-day transition 
period, the portfolio returned -0.7% and would have returned -1.30/0 if left in the portfolio. He reported 
in-kind transfers and cash were transferred to the new Liquidity sub-portfolio managers and at year 
end all three managers were at their initial targets and have been fully implemented. He stated the first 
draft of the liquidity reporting will be presented at the next meeting and the first benefit payment will 
be made from this program about two days before the next meeting. 

He reported the Phase II restructuring recommendation will be presented at the next meeting. The 
recommendation and presentations will include emerging market managers and passive US equity 
managers. 



12. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

Page 3 
January 11, 2017 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of all Board members and 5 staff members to the 
General Assembly, CALAPRS, March 4-7, 2017, Monterey, CA. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, 
Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

b. It was MlS/C to authorize the attendance of all Board members to the Sexual Harassment 
Prevention Training for Staff/Board, California Special Districts Association, January 24, 2017, 
Webinar. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and 
Watts) 

c. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 3 Board members and 3 staff members to the 2017 
Investor Conference, Angelo, Gordon & Co., March 15, 2017, New York, NY. (Yes: Allen, 
Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips. Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

d. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 3 Board members to the Trustees' Roundtable, 
CALAPRS, February 3, 2017, San Jose, CA. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

e. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 4 Board members and 2 staff members to the CII 
Spring 2017 Conference, Council of Institutional Investors, February 27-March 1, 2017, 
Washington, DC. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey and Watts) 

13. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report -

Strohl reported in accordance with CCCERA's Procurement Policy to report to the Board on 
contracts in excess of $10k, CCCERA has contracted with Jacobi Strategies, a technology 
platform that bundles risk oversight and portfolio construction tools. The annual fee is $25,000 
and the first year costs could go up to $25,000 depending on the hours needed for consulting on 
developing reports. She also reported that in the next few months CCCERA will be providing 
their first Employer Handbook to participating employers. 

Levy The Court of Appeals has issued a new decision in another "vested rights" challenge to 
PEPRA. The CalFire v. CalPERS case involved PEPRA's elimination of non-qualified service 
purchases, which basically allowed members to purchase up-to five years of time they did not 
actually work. CalPERS implemented the PEPRA provision and CalF ire Local 2881 challenged 
the elimination of the benefit on constitutional grounds. The Court of Appeals upheld the 
constitutionality of PEPRA' s elimination of this benefit. The court of appeals decision is 
appealable. Fiduciary counsel Harvey Leiderman's alert pertaining to this new decision was 
distributed. 

(b) Outside Professionals' Report -

None 

(c) Trustees' comments-

Kroll requested an update for the February meeting on the hearings for members that were 
represented by the Physicians' and Dentists organization of Contra Costa County. 

Smithey reported the Audit Committee met on November 2, 2016 noting the key items discussed 
were the safeguards of living status of retirees, outsourcing of internal audits, and the Sub ledger 
decommissioning process. 



Page 4 
January 11,2017 

MacDonald reported he passed the Certificate of Achievement in Public Plan Policy (CAPPP) 
exam and felt it was a very good program. 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey and Watts) 

John Phillips, Chairman Scott Gordon, Secretary 



Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATIO Agenda Item 
#4 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

Page 1 February 8, 2017 

Items requiring Board Action 

A. Certifications of Membership - see list and classification forms. 

B. 

C. 

KEY: 

Service and Disability Retirement Allowances: 

Effective Option 

Name Number Date Type Group Selected 

Arcega, Willie 45993 11/12/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Bhambra, Jagjit 52765 11/1/16 SR Tier III Unmod 

Brown, Susan 63206 9/1/16 SR Tier I Unmod 

Chiu, Grace 48361 11/1/16 SR Tier III Unmod 

Dillon, Melanie 55009 10/1/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Gossett, Jenne 32896 11/1/16 SR Tier III Unmod 

Hindsman, Roland 40765 11/30/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Ingram, Virgina 44253 11/8/16 SR Tier III Unmod 

Maxwell, Jeffrey 07274 10/22/16 SR Safety A Unmod 

McConnell, Patricia 54801 11/1/16 SR Tier III Unmod 

Minadeo, Joanne 44446 11/12/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Morris, Barbara 45539 11/01/16 SR Tier II a nd III Unmod 

Oakley, Thomas 33927 11/02/16 SR Safety A Unmod 

Quevedo, Luis 62657 10/22/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Ramlall, Ramganesh 62938 11/01/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Tokarzewski, Marcin 55136 10/31/16 SR Tier I Option 2 

Whalen, Linda 64068 10/19/16 SR Tier III Option 2 

Wilner, Sarah 40892 11/05/16 SR Tier II and III Unmod 

Disability Retirement Applications: The Board's Hearing Officer is hereby authorized to 
issue subpoenas in the following cases involving disability applications: 

Name 

Melgoza-Moore, Sally 

G 8iOUp 

I = Tier I 
II = T ier 11 

III = Tier III 
S/ A = Safetv T ier A 
SIC = Safety T ier C 

Number Filed 

56008 01/04/17 

Option 
* = County Advance 

Selected w/ option 

Type 

NSCD 

~ 
NSP = Non-Specified 

seD = Service Connected Disability 
SR = Servrce Retirement 

NSCD = Non-Service Connected Disabiiity 



CONTRA COSTA COUN1Y EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Page 2 

D. 

Deaths: 
Name 

Abille, June 

Ballew, Rosemary 

Bigbee, Marie 

Clark, Leslie 

Dimas, Ophelia 

Ford, Don 

Hughes, Thelma 

Klebanoff, Helen 

Lappin, Joseph 

Lopez, Daniel 

Madrigal, Joaquin 

Maurer, John 

Maxfield, William 

Miller, Willie T 

Pratt, Cha rles 

Reeves, Mary 

Roragen, Raymond 

Schroth, Sheila 

Thomas, Richard 

Turman, George 

Watts, Tanya 

Group 
I = Tier I 

II = Tier II 
III = Tie r III 

5j A = Safety T ier A 
Si C = Safety T ier C 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

Date of Death Em[Jlo¥er as of Date of Death 

12/29/2016 Contra Costa County 

12/23/2016 Contra Costa County 

1/2/2017 Contra Costa County 

1/15/2017 Contra Costa County 

12/24/2016 Contra Costa County 

1/7/2017 Contra Costa County 

12/20/2016 Benificiary 

12/29/2016 Ben ificia ry 

12/13/2016 Contra Costa County 

1/13/2017 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

9/4/2016 Alt-Payee 

1/22/2017 Contra Costa County 

1/8/2017 Contra Costa Fire Protection District 

1/7/2017 Contra Costa County 

12/20/2016 Contra Costa County 

1/9/2017 Benificiary 

12/10/2016 Benificiary 

12/11/2016 Contra Costa County 

12/31/2016 Benificiary 

1/10/2017 Contra Costa County 

12/7/2016 Contra Costa County 

Option 
* = County Advance 

Selected w/ option 

~ 
NSP = Nan-Specified 

seD = Servi(;e Connected D!sab~ity 
SR = Service Retirement 

February 8, 2017 

NSCD = f~on-Service Connected Disability 



Name 

Abang, Matthew R. 

Ackerman, Mark D. 

Alomar, Denise 

Baird-Kerr Matus, James A 

Bal, Aileen E. 

Baskin, Lianne 

Boutelle, Veronica R. 

Brown, Tashanique J. 

Cannavino, Cristina 

Chaparro, Josita L.G. 

Civello, Kimberly N. 

Crane, Thomas V. 

Dhillon, Karampreet 

Doboue, Marie C. 

Esplana-Ferrer, Ria C 

Ferrell, Lashurn M. 

Garcia, Raquel 

Gatmaitan, Mary Jane 0 

Gillard, Tonika N. 

Graves, Trinell 

Greer, Theresa M. 

Grevenkamp, Scott M 

Hamilton, Jennifer R. 

Heinla, Cheryl L. 

Hills, Jo-Ann 

Jackson, Lauren M. 

Jarrar, Aous Z. 

Jefferson, Larry G. 

Johnson, Darci J. 

Jones, Natalie 

Jones-Herman, Tawana 

Justice, Lynn M. 

Kraai, Rachel M. 

Kram, Justin W. 

Krasowski, Michelle J 

Lebrane, Kemoy V. 

Leiber, Philip R. 

Liang, Pamela 

Lin, Aung Z. 

Long, Robert A. 

Mack, Sabrina M. 

I = Tier I 
n = Tier (( 
III = Tier III 

CERTIFICA TION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

Agenda Item 
#40. 

Employee Membership 
Number Tier Date Employer 

83687 PS.2 12/01/16 Contra Costa County 

83246 PS.2 12/01/16 Contra Costa County 

78041 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84089 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84188 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

D9S00 PS.3 12/1/2016 Superior Courts 

84190 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84088 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84120 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84187 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84081 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84112 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84174 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

82S8S PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84133 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84040 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

80404 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

81928 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84179 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84121 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84076 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84129 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

74708 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

8407S PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

82089 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84130 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84077 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84132 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84199 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

D3301 PS.3 12/1/2016 Contra Costa Mosquito & Vector Control District 

8417S PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

77631 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84162 III 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84017 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84177 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

83760 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

D3406 P4.3 12/1/2016 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

84080 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

69904 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

84091 PS.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

D9S00 PS.3 12/1/2016 Superior Courts 

Key: 
P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (20/0 COLA) S/A = Safetv Tier A 
P4.3 == PEPRA Tier 4 (30/0 COLA) SIC = Safeh Tier C 
PS.2;;o PEPRA Tier S (2°/1) COLA) SfD = Safety Tier D 
PS.3 :;:: PEPRA Tier 5 (3% COLA) SIE == Safet~y Tier E 

Page 1 



CERTIFICA TION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Maqsoudi, Dunyau 75306 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Marroquin, Shana Y. 84024 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

McCarthy, Ignatius 84191 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Mendez, Janet C. 84066 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Middleton, Meranda E. 84184 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Miramontes, Eleanor A. 84059 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Mitchell, Jasmine C. 84164 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Nack, Nissa L. 84176 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Neal, Rachel A. 84113 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Nichols, Presious A. 84182 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Nay, Mariana T. 84119 III 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Ojibway, Rhussel J 84157 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Peebles, Melissa L. 84134 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Petitt Jr., Randolph C. 03406 P4.3 12/1/2016 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

Po lee, Darneesha R. 83593 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Pruitt, Kimberly 65233 III 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Quintanilla Henriquez, Roxana N 83153 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Rafael, Brasilia F. 84090 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Ramirez, Alma R. 75049 III 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Reed, Gina M. 84136 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Reimer, Loren S. 03406 P4.3 12/1/2016 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

Rodriguez Cruz, Jhoanna C. 84158 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Rodriguez, Mayra B. 84189 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Roland, Christy 84186 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Rood, Audrey L.H. 84147 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Sheetz, Kara S. 84178 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Shi, Henry H. 84181 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Sims, Kimberly M. 63282 III 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Skinner, Karen L. 37179 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Smith, Laurianne L. 84074 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

St Julian, Rachel R. 84180 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Tetteh, Victor K. 84156 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Vegara, Ma Corazon L. 84173 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

VU,Uyen 84185 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Washington, Chipo 81970 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

White, Tiffany M. 83652 PE.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Whitehead, Meagan R. 84149 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Wilks, Pamela D. 84183 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Wong, Peter c.Y. 84102 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Wright, Taylor A. 03406 P4.3 12/1/2016 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

Wright, Tiffany A. 81910 P5.2 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County 

Kev: 
I = Tier I P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2Ofo COLA) SI A = Safeh' Tier A 
H=Tier II P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) SIC = Safen' Tier C 
III = Tier III PS.2 = PErRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) SID = Safety Tier D 

P5.3 = PEPRA Tier 5 (30/0 COl,A) SIE =: Safety Tier E 

Page 2 



TIER CHANGES 
Employee New Effective 

Name Number Old Tier Tier Date Employer Reason for Change 

Bottorff, Beth 83232 PS.2 III 12/1/2016 Contra Costa County Reciprocity 

Rodwell, Stephen 07830 P4.3 I 12/1/2016 San Ramon Valley Fire District Reciprocity 

Key: 
I = Tier I P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (20/0 COLA) SI A = Safety Tier A 
II ;: Tier II P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4 (30/0 COLA) SIC = Safeh Tier C 
III = Tier III PS.2 =PEPRA Tier 5 (20/0 COLA) SID = Safety Tjer D 

P5.3 = PEPRA, Tier 5 (30/0 COLA) SlE =0 Safety Tier E 

Page 3 



Liquidity 

Insight 

Sit 

Dimensional Fund Advisors 

PIMCO Total Return 

Goldman Sachs 

Lazard 

Cash 

ITotal Liquidity 

Growth 

Domestic Equity 

Robeco 

Jackson Square 

Emerald Advisors 

Intech (Core) 

PIMCO Stocks+ 

Ceredex 

Total Domestic Equity 

Global & International Equity 

Pyrford (BMO) 

William Blair 

JPMorgan Global Opportunities 

First Eagle 

Artisan Global Opportunities 

Intech (Global Low Volatility) 

Emerging Markets Equity 

Total Global & International Equity 

High Yield (Allianz) 

Private Equity 
Private Credit 

Real Estate - Value Add 

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 

ITotal Growth Assets 

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO 

Diversifying Strategies (Wellington) 

ITotal Risk Diversifying 

ITotal Fund 

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 

Asset Allocation as of December 31,2016 

Market 

Value 

823,209,000 

432,740,000 

400,516,000 

5,000 

56,000 

1,031,000 

69,553,000 

1,727,110,000 

342,952,000 

312,432,000 

251,478,000 

292,698,000 

350,162,000 

242,747,000 

1,792,469,000 

403,823,000 

403,728,000 

127,462,000 

324,077,000 

321,213,000 

23,168,000 

0 
1,603,471,000 

387,947,000 
770,217,000 

161,939,000 

200,940,000 

549,482,000 

65,133,000 

5,531,598,000 

236,464,000 

187,762,000 

424,226,000 

7,682,934,000 I 

Percentage Phase 1 Target 
of Total Fund Percentage 

10.7% 10.5% 

5.6% 5.9% 

5.2% 5.9% 

0.0% 0.0% 

0.0% 0.0% 

0.0% 0.0% 

0.9% 1.6% 

22.5% 23.9% 

Range 
20% - 28% 

4.5% 4.2% 

4.1% 4.3% 

3.3% 3.2% 

3.8% 3.8% 

4.6% 4.4% 

3.2% 3.0% 

23.3% 22.9% 

5.3% 5.5% 

5.3% 5.5% 

1.7% 1.8% 

4.2% 4.3% 

4.2% 4.5% 

0.3% 0.3% 

0.0% 0.0% 

20.9% 21.9% 

5.0% 5.1% 

10.0% 8.8% 

2.1% 2.1% 

2.6% 4.2% 

7.2% 4.2% 

0.8% 1.0% 

72.0% 70.2% 

Range 

60% - 80% 

3.1% 3.2% 

2.4% 2.5% 

5.5% 5.7% 

Range 

0% -10% 

100% 100% 

Phase 1 

Over/(Under) 

0.2% 
-0.3% 

-0.7% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-0.7% 

-1.4% 

0.3% 

-0.2% 

0.1% 

0.0% 

0.2% 

0.2% 

0.4% 

-0.2% 

-0.2% 

-0.1% 

-0.1% 

-0.3% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-1.0% 

-0.1% 

1.2% 

0.0% 

-1.6% 

3.0% 

-0.2% 

1.8% 

-0.1% 

-0.1% 

-0.2% 

0% 

*Phase 1 targets and ranges reflect Phase 1 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on October 26,2016 (BOR Resolution 2016-3) 

Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

Agenda Item 
#4e. 

Long Term 
Target 

1.0% 

25.0% 

6.0% 

5.0% 

5.0% 

10.0% 

20.0% 

0.0% 

12.0% 

16.0% 

4.0% 

4.0% 

1.0% 

63.0% 

3.0% 

9.0% 

12.0% 

100% 

Long Term 
Over/(Under) 

-0.1% 

-2.5% 

17.3% 

0.3% 

0.3% 

-10.0% 
0.9% 

5.0% 

-2.0% 

-13.9% 

-1.4% 

3.2% 

-0.2% 

9.0% 

0.1% 
-6.6% 

-6.5% 

0% 



REAL ESTATE - Value Add 

Invesco IREF I 

Invesco IREF II 

Invesco IREF III 

Invesco IREF IV 

Long Wharf FREG III 

Long Wharf FREG IV 

Long Wharf FREG V 

LaSalle Income & Growth Fund VI 

LaSalle Income & Growth Fund VII 

REAL ESTATE -Opportunistic & Distressed 

DU Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. III 

DU Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. IV 

DU Real Estate Capital Partners, L.P. V 

Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund V 

Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund VI 

Oaktree Real Estate Opportunities Fund VII 

Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opp. Fund 

Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opp. Fund II 

Siguler Guff Distressed Real Estate Opp. II Co-Inv 

Paulson Real Estate Fund II 

Angelo Gordon Realty Fund VIII 

Angelo Gordon Realty Fund IX 

PRIVATE CREDIT 

Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund II 

Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund III 

Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund IV 

Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund V 

Angelo Gordon Energy Credit Opportunities 

Inception Target 

Date Termination 

10/22/03 04/30/11 

05/30/07 12/31/15 

08/01/13 08/01/20 

12/01/14 12/01/21 

03/30/07 12/30/15 

08/14/13 09/30/21 

10/31/16 09/30/24 

01/31/12 01/31/19 

10/31/16 09/30/24 

Outstanding Commitments 

Total 

Inception Target 

Date Termination 

06/30/05 06/30/14 

12/31/07 09/30/16 

07/31/13 12/31/22 

12/15/11 12/31/16 

09/30/13 09/30/20 

02/28/15 02/28/23 

12/31/11 12/31/16 

08/31/13 08/31/20 

01/31/16 01/31/23 

11/10/13 11/10/20 

12/31/11 12/31/18 

10/10/14 10/10/22 

Outstanding Commitments 

Total 

Inception Target 

Date Termination 

09/28/06 09/30/16 

09/30/08 09/30/16 

08/01/12 08/30/20 

12/31/14 09/17/22 

09/10/15 09/10/20 

Outstanding Commitments 

Total 

#of 

Extension 

3rd 1 YR 

#of 

Extension 

1st 2 YR 

#of 

Extension 

Private Market Investments 

As of December 31, 2016 

Discretion New Target Funding 

by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

GP 4/30/2014 50,000,000 

85,000,000 

35,000,000 

35,000,000 

75,000,000 

25,000,000 

50,000,000 

75,000,000 

75,000,000 

505,000,000 

Discretion New Target Funding 

by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

GP 6/30/2016 75,000,000 

100,000,000 

75,000,000 

50,000,000 

80,000,000 

65,000,000 

75,000,000 

70,000,000 

25,000,000 

20,000,000 

80,000,000 

65,000,000 

780,000,000 

Discretion New Target Funding 

by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

128,000,000 

75,000,000 

60,000,000 

75,000,000 

75,000,000 

413,000,000 

Market %of Outstanding 

Value Total Asset Commitment 

6,532,000 0.09% 

14,861,000 0.19% 

19,281,000 0.25% 20,305,000 

25,170,000 0.33% 11,627,000 

12,558,000 0.16% 

24,671,000 0.32% 

14,234,000 0.19% 35,766,000 

83,633,000 1.09% 3,946,000 

0 0.00% 75,000,000 

200,940,000 2.62% 146,644,000 

146,644,000 

347,584,000 

Market %of Outstanding 

Value Total Asset Commitment 

41,782,000 0.54% 

82,551,000 1.07% 

45,214,000 0.59% 39,072,000 

33,370,000 0.43% 

89,579,000 1.17% 5,682,000 

6,500,000 0.08% 58,500,000 

67,994,000 0.89% 11,993,000 

51,716,000 0.67% 40,988,000 

13,583,000 0.18% 11,417,000 

21,913,000 0.29% 1,874,000 

65,987,000 0.86% 18,145,000 

29,293,000 0.38% 40,463,000 

549,482,000 7.15% 228,134,000 

228,134,000 

777,616,000 

Market %of Outstanding 

Value Total Asset Commitment 

48,577,000 0.63% 

10,513,000 0.14% 

61,858,000 0.81% 

22,241,000 0.29% 63,750,000 

18,750,000 0.24% 56,250,000 

161,939,000 2.11% 120,000,000 

120,000,000 

281,939,000 



PRIVATE EQUITY 

Adams Street Partners 

Adams Street Secondary II 

Adams Street Secondary V 

Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund 

Bay Area Equity Fund 

Bay Area Equity Fund II 

Carpenter Community BancFund 

ElF USPF I 

ElF USPF II 

ElF USPF III 

ElF USPF IV 

Oaktree Private Investment Fund 2009 

Ocean Avenue Fund II 

Ocean Avenue Fund III 

Paladin III 

Pathway 

Pathway 2008 

Pathway 6 

Pathway 7 

Pathway 8 

Siguler Guff CCCERA Opportunities 

Siguler Guff Secondary Opportunities 

Real Assets 

Aether III & III Surplus 

Aether IV 

ARES ElF V 

Commonfund Capital Natural Resources IX 

Wastewater Opportunity Fund 

Inception Target 

Date Termination 

12/22/95 INDEFINITE 

12/31/08 12/31/20 

10/31/12 10/31/22 

03/09/16 03/09/28 

06/14/04 01/15/13 

2/29/09 12/31/17 

01/31/08 01/31/16 

11/08/02 11/08/12 

06/15/05 06/15/15 

02/28/07 02/28/17 

06/28/10 06/28/20 

02/28/10 01/31/17 

06/11/14 05/31/24 

06/11/14 05/31/24 

11/30/07 12/31/17 

11/09/98 05/31/21 

12/26/08 12/26/23 

OS/24/11 OS/24/26 

02/07/13 02/07/23 

11/23/15 11/23/25 

06/03/14 05/31/25 

12/31/16 12/31/26 

11/30/13 11/30/20 

01/01/16 01/01/28 

09/09/15 09/09/25 

06/30/13 06/30/20 

12/31/15 11/30/22 

Outstanding Commitments 

Total 

#of 

Extension 

1st 2 YR 

3rd lYR 

Market value column is the latest ending quarter plus any additional capital calls after the end ing quarter. 

Private Market Investments 
As of December 31, 2016 

Discretion New Target Funding 

by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

180,000,000 

30,000,000 

40,000,000 

75,000,000 

LP 1/15/2015 10,000,000 

10,000,000 

30,000,000 

LP 11/08/15 30,000,000 

50,000,000 

65,000,000 

50,000,000 

40,000,000 

30,000,000 

50,000,000 

25,000,000 

125,000,000 

30,000,000 

40,000,000 

70,000,000 

50,000,000 

200,000,000 

50,000,000 

75,000,000 

50,000,000 

50,000,000 

50,000,000 

25,000,000 

1,545,000,000 

The Target Termination column is the beginning of liqu idation of the fund, however, some funds may be extended for an additional two or three years. 

Market %of Outstanding 

Value Total Asset Commitment 

134,633,000 ~ 1.75% 86,697,000 

19,395,000 0.25% 12,637,000 

20,104,000 0.26% 18,580,000 

0 0.00% 75,000,000 

5,554,000 0.07% 

11,048,000 0.14% 

27,135,000 0.35% 1,479,000 

807,000 0.01% 

43,389,000 0.56% 

68,010,000 0.89% 

50,086,000 0.65% 

18,455,000 0.24% 

17,885,000 0.23% 14,884,000 

5,000,000 0.07% 45,000,000 

25,374,000 0.33% 

49,874,000 0.65% 14,643,000 

24,360,000 0.32% 6,931,000 

30,906,000 0.40% 13,050,000 

35,717,000 0.46% 33,482,000 

8,830,000 0.11% 40,972,000 

70,042,000 0.91% 132,748,000 

8,250,000 0.11% 41,750,000 

47,186,000 0.62% 27,869,000 

5,957,000 0.08% 44,043,000 

11,439,000 0.00% 38,561,000 

27,073,000 0.35% 20,500,000 

3,708,000 0.05% 21,292,000 

770,217,000 9.88% 690,118,000 

690,118,000 

1,460,335,000 



MEMORANDUM 
Date: February 8, 2017    

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Wrally Dutkiewicz 
Compliance Officer 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action to Exclude Excess On-Call Pay (D33) Paid to 
Eleven Retired Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) From Pension 
Calculations Pursuant to Government Code 31539 
Supplemental Staff Report 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

At its May 4, 2016 meeting the Board of Retirement considered whether to exclude excess on-
call pay (D33) paid to ten retired Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) from pension 
calculations pursuant to Government Code Section 31539.  No action was taken by the Board 
of Retirement at the meeting and the matter was continued to a future Board of Retirement 
meeting. This report is a supplement to the report presented on May 4, 2016. 

This review was conducted pursuant to Government Code Section 31539 (a)(2) which states: 

“The member caused his or her final compensation to be improperly increased or otherwise 
overstated at the time of the retirement and the system applied that overstated amount as the 
basis for calculating the member’s monthly retirement allowance or other benefits under this 
chapter.” 

During the May 4, 2016 Board of Retirement meeting staff presented data illustrating that 
unusual increases in on-call compensation were observed and was included in the eleven 
members’ final average salary and that the inclusion of the increased on-call compensation 
caused the retirement system to calculate pension benefits on an increased basis.  In addition, 
the Board of Retirement received written and verbal responses from retirees and their attorneys, 
and former Hazardous Materials Department management. 

Following the May 4, 2016 meeting staff made additional information requests to the 
Hazardous Materials Department and Health Services payroll department and received payroll 

1



HaMat Spec II  
On-Call Compensation Review 
February 8, 2017 
Page 2 of 7 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

data for the five years preceding the dates of retirement for each of the members along with 
clarifying information on the manner in which on-call time and compensatory time were coded 
and paid. 

In consideration of Government Code Section 31539(a)(2) there are two questions that the 
analysis that was performed was to provide insights into and provide the basis upon which the 
Board of Retirement would be able to consider: 

1. What action did the member take that led to an increase in paid on-call compensation
during their final average salary period?

2. Did that action that led to an increase in on-call compensation being paid during their
final average salary period lead to an improper increase in the calculation of the
members’ monthly retirement allowance?

Effect of Unusual Increases in On-Call Compensation 

It was observed that the average increase in on-call compensation received by eleven (11) 
HazMat Specialist II (V4VC) was 56.04% in the final average salary (FAS) periods.  The 
highest increases in on-call pay were 100% and the lowest increase was 26.16%. 

The unusual increases in on-call call compensation received by eleven (11) HazMat Specialist 
II (V4VC) had the following effects: 

1. Average FAS increased by 14.84% across the eleven retirees.  The highest increase in
FAS was 28.65% and the lowest increase in FAS was 5.82%.1

2. Due to the increase in FAS amounts, the average increase in annual pension amounts
was $10,921. The highest increase in pension amount was $23,496 and the lowest
increase was $3,792.2

3. Due to the unusual increases in on-call compensation paid to the eleven HazMat Spec
II retirees in their FAS period, and insufficient employee and employer contributions
having been collected, CCCERA’s actuary Segal Consulting has calculated that
CCCERA’s Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) has increased by

1 Attachment A: Table A Percent Increase of Paid On-Call Compensation in FAS Period Over 
Pre-FAS Period – Average of Column E 
2 Attachment A: Table B Increase in Retirement Benefit Due to Increased On-Call Pay – Column 
B 

2



HaMat Spec II  
On-Call Compensation Review 
February 8, 2017 
Page 3 of 7 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

$1,841,1083. This increase in UAAL is currently a component of the County’s total 
UAAL which has been amortized over an eighteen year period beginning with the 
valuation that immediately followed each members’ date of retirement. Should the 
Board of Retirement, through its review and consideration, take action to adjust the 
members’ retirement allowances by excluding excess on-call compensation, an off-
setting actuarial credit would be applied which would adjust the UAAL accordingly as 
of the next valuation date. 

Causes of Unusual Increases in On-Call Compensation 

There are three observed contributing causes of the unusual increases in on-call compensation 
in the retired members’ final average salary periods: 

1. The members directly influenced the payment of on-call time compensation in their final
average salary period by electing to have on-call time worked during their final average
salary (FAS) periods paid as on-call time, for which, in time periods preceding their
FAS period, was elected by the member and coded on their time sheets as non-
pensionable compensatory time off. Per the Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs)
that were in effect at the time non-pensionable overtime worked by the member was
eligible to be received by the member as cash or could be elected to be coded as
compensatory time off.4  Pay code D33 on-call time was not indicated by the MOUs to
be an eligible form of pay to be converted to compensatory time off as only non-
pensionable overtime was eligible for the conversion to compensatory time off.

It was observed in the review of timesheets that members’ had directed their payroll 
department to have on-call time coded as compensatory time off. Six of the eleven 
retired members’ timesheets for the five year period preceding their retirement date 
indicated that the members’ had on-call time coded as compensatory time off for much 
of the time period preceding their retirement dates, with the exception of the pre-FAS 
and FAS periods.  The timesheet documents also showed that direction was both 
explicitly given to payroll by the members through written direction on the time sheets 
for the payroll department to code their on-call time as compensatory time off, and by 
accepted practice as evidenced by the manager or supervisor sign off on the timesheets 
converting on-call time to compensatory time off.5  

3 Attachment B: Segal Consulting letter to CCCERA dated July 15, 2016 Exhibit A – Segal 
Consulting column heading Increase in CCCERA UAAL – Grand Total 
4 Attachment C – Memorandum of Understanding Between Contra Costa County and Public 
Employees Union, Local One, October 2008 – June 2011 & July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2013 
5 Attachment F – Sample Timesheet 

3



HaMat Spec II  
On-Call Compensation Review 
February 8, 2017 
Page 4 of 7 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

In the attached charts (Attachment D) the switch to having the on-call time coded as 
D33 is illustrated by the grey shaded columns (on-call hours) and solid black line (paid 
on-call hours) to the right side of the charts while the compensatory time coded is 
indicated by the striped columns to the left of the charts led to the retirement system 
calculating the retirement allowances of the members on an enhanced basis (See 
Attachment D Charts: Hanson – Chart 3, Khoo – Chart 6, Loyd – Chart 7, Nicholson 
Chart – 8, Price – Chart 9, Wedl – Chart 10). 

2. The members were able to increase their on-call compensation by their own volition by
acquiring additional on-call time in their final average salary periods by volunteering to
work additional on-call hours and accepting trades of on-call hours from other
members. The Hazardous Materials Department has a mandate from Contra Costa
County to administer and deliver Hazardous Materials Programs within the County.
However, the annual Hazardous Materials Area Plan, County Salary Regulations,
County Personnel Policies, the applicable Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) during
the members’ FAS period, and the Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) job
description, do not state that the on-call time worked by the members was required duty.
The County Salary Regulations under Section 8 – Conditions of Employment – Hours
provides the definition of a normal work week as being comprised of forty (40) hours.6
On-call time is also defined in the County salary regulations as any period during which
the employee is not actually on duty. 7

It was observed in the review of schedules and time-sheets, and in email8 from and to
the Hazardous Assistant Director, that the retirees had the ability to trade, swap, and
sign up for additional shifts, thus indicating that there was, in practice, a discretionary
allocation of on-call time by the Director and Assistant Director, and voluntary election
to sign up and work the on-call time by the members. This ability for the members to
self-elect and acquire additional on-call during their FAS led to additional on-call
compensation being paid upon which the retirement system calculated the members’
retirement allowance on an enhanced basis (See Attachment D: Charts Adebiyi– Chart
1, Glimme – Chart 2, Hutchin – Chart 4, Jonsson –Chart 5, Yoshioka – Chart 11).

3. Hazardous Materials Department management and supervisors facilitated the increase
of paid on-call compensation in the members’ final average salary. The Hazardous

6 Attachment I: Contra Costa County Salary Regulations Section 8.2(a) Normal Workweek  
7 Attachment I: Contra Costa County Salary Regulation Section 8.1(a) On-Call Time – 
Definition and Credit 
8 Attachment E: Email  thread October 4, 2012 from S. Moriaka, Asst. Director to HazMat Spec 
II staff “Additional On-Call Time Distribution”   

4



HaMat Spec II  
On-Call Compensation Review 
February 8, 2017 
Page 5 of 7 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Materials department Director and Assistant Director did not have a formal written 
department directive or procedure that had been communicated to Hazardous Materials 
Specialist II members that governed the administration of and the allocation of on-call 
time which contributed to the members’ ability to acquire additional on-call hours 
during their final average salary period.   

With respect to timesheet approval and the coding of on-call time, management and 
supervisory approval was evidenced by the approval signatures upon the timesheets 
generally, and specifically for timesheets that coded on-call time as compensatory time 
off. 

Recommendations: 

Based on the review and analysis of the data the following recommendations are made: 

1. If the Board were to find that the resulting unusual increases in on-call compensation in
the members’ final average salary period were attributable to either of the following:

a. The members’ own direct influence on enhancing their on-call compensation in
their final average salary period by changing their election to cease receiving
non-pensionable compensatory time and receive payment for D33 on-call time
hours; or

b. The members’ own direct influence on enhancing their on-call compensation in
their final average salary period by self-electing to acquire and work additional
on-call hours;

Then the Board may consider and take action to direct staff to recalculate and adjust the 
members’ pensions prospectively by excluding the amounts of excess on-call pay 
indicated for each member in Attachment A, Table A, Column C.  

Retiree Name Retiree Name 

Adebiyi, G Loyd, S 

Glimme, E Nicholson, C 

Hanson, S Price, N 

Hutchin, D Wedl, M 

Jonsson, E Yoshioka, J 

Khoo, S 

5



HaMat Spec II  
On-Call Compensation Review 
February 8, 2017 
Page 6 of 7 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

2.To the extent that any pension overpayment may exist due to the inclusion of the excess
on-call compensation included in the members’ FAS used in the calculation of the
members’ pensions, that the Board would direct staff to seek the recoupment of the
members’ cumulative pension overpayments from the date of retirement plus appropriate
interest pursuant to CCCERA’s Policy Governing the Overpayment or Underpayment of
Member Benefits. (Attachment G)

6



HaMat Spec II  
On-Call Compensation Review 
February 8, 2017 
Page 7 of 7 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Attachments: 

A  Table A: Percent Increase of Paid On-Call Compensation in FAS Period Over pre-
FAS Period

 Table B: Increase In Retirement Benefit Due to Increased On-Call Pay

B Segal Consulting letter to CCCERA dated July 15, 2016 

C Memorandum of Understanding Between Contra Costa County and Public Employees 
Union, Local One 

 October 1, 2008 – June 30, 2011
 July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2013

D Charts – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date 

Chart 1 – Adebiyi, G 
Chart 2 – Glimme, E 
Chart 3 – Hanson, S 
Chart 4 – Hutchin, D 
Chart 5 – Jonsson, E 
Chart 6 – Khoo, S 
Chart 7 – Loyd, S 
Chart 8 – Nicholson, C 
Chart 9 – Price, N 
Chart 10 – Wedle, M 
Chart 11 – Yoshioka, J 

E Email Thread October 4, 2012 – Additional On-Call Time Distribution 

F Timesheet Example – Direction to Payroll Department to Code On-Call Time As 
Compensatory Time 

G Policy Governing the Overpayment or Underpayment of Member Benefits 

H Accumulated Overpayment With and Without Interest Tables 

I Contra Costa County Salary Regulation Section 8 – Conditions of Employment – Hours 

7



i 

Table of Contents 
Board of Retirement Meeting 

February 8, 2017 

Document Page 
February 8, 2017 Memo to the Board of Retirement 
Consider and Take Possible Action to Exclude Excess On-Call Pay (D33) Paid to Eleven 
Retired Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) From Pension Calculations Pursuant to 
Government Code 31539 

Supplemental Staff Report 

1 

Table of Contents 8 
Attachment A: 

• Table A: Percent Increase of Paid On-Call Compensation in FAS Period Over pre-FAS
Period

• Table B: Increase In Retirement Benefit Due to Increased On-Call Pay

11 

Attachment B: 

Segal Consulting letter to CCCERA dated July 15, 2016 

14 

Attachment C: 

Excerpts from Memorandum of Understanding Between Contra Costa County and Public 
Employees Union, Local One 

• October 1, 2008 – June 30, 2011
• July 1, 2011 – June 30, 2013

19 

Attachment D: 

Charts – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date 

Chart 1 – Adebiyi, G 
Chart 2 – Glimme, E 
Chart 3 – Hanson, S 
Chart 4 – Hutchin, D 
Chart 5 – Jonsson, E 
Chart 6 – Khoo, S 
Chart 7 – Loyd, S 
Chart 8 – Nicholson, C 
Chart 9 – Price, N 
Chart 10 – Wedle, M 
Chart 11 – Yoshioka, J 

31 

8



ii 

Attachment E: 

Email Thread October 4, 2012 – Additional On-Call Time Distribution 

43 

Attachment F: 

Timesheet Example – Direction to Payroll Department to Code On-Call Time As 
Compensatory Time 

45 

Attachment G: 

Policy Governing the Overpayment or Underpayment of Member Benefits 

48 

Attachment H: 

Accumulated Overpayment With and Without Interest Tables 

54 

Attachment I: 

Contra Costa County Salary Regulation Section 8 – Conditions of Employment – Hours 

56 

Notice of Meeting Letters to all affected retirees – January 3, 2017 59 

May 4, 2016 Memo to the Board of Retirement 
Consider and Take Possible Action to Exclude On-Call Pay (D33) Paid to Ten Retired 
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) From Pension Calculations Pursuant To 
Government Code 31539 

85 

Attachment 1: 

• Board of Retirement Letter of Intent To Review Past Incidents Of Unusual
Compensation Increases At End Of Employment Dated 5/8/2014

• Board of Retirement Supplemental Direction Regarding Review Of Past Incidents Of
Unusual Compensation Increases At End Of Employment Dated 7/31/2014

96 

Attachment 2: 

May 6, 2015 BOR Meeting Agenda #9 – Consider and Take Possible Action Regarding 
Whether On-Call Pay Should Be Treated As Pensionable For Retired Hazardous Materials 
Specialist Paul Andrews 

99 

Attachment 3: 

Minutes – Item #9 BOR Meeting Agenda – Motion – Board Action 

108 

9



iii 

Attachment 4: 

BOR Policy Governing The Overpayment Or Under Payment of Member Contributions 
[Adopted 12/10/2014] 

111 

Attachment 5: 

Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) Job Description 

117 

Attachment 6: 

MOU Between Contra Costa County and PEU Local One October 1, 2008 – June 30, 2011 
Page 37 Section 9 – On-Call Duty, Page 205-206 On Call and Duty Pay 

122 

Attachment 7: 

Excerpts from MOU Between Contra Costa County and PEU Local One July 1, 2011 – June 
30,2013 Page 39 Section 9 – On-Call Duty, Pages 205-206  On Call Duty and Pay 

125 

Attachment 8: 

Excerpts from MOU Between Contra Costa County and PEU Local One July 1, 2013 – June 
30, 2016 Page 24 Section 9 – On-Call Duty, Page 136 On Call Duty and Pay 

128 

Attachment 9 :  G. Adebiyi – Compensation & On-Call Charts 131 

Attachment 10: S. Hanson  – Compensation & On-Call Charts 134 

Attachment 11: D. Hutchin – Compensation & On-Call Charts 137 

Attachment 12: E. Jonsson – Compensation & On-Call Charts 140 

Attachment 13: S. Khoo – Compensation & On-Call Charts 143 

Attachment 14: C. Nicholson – Compensation & On-Call Charts 146 

Attachment 15: N. Price – Compensation & On-Call Charts 149 

Attachment 16: J. Yoshioka – Compensation & On-Call Charts 152 

Attachment 17: S. Loyd – Compensation & On-Call Charts 155 

Attachment 18: M. Wedl – Compensation & On-Call Charts 158 

Attachment 19:  E. Glimme – Compensation & On-Call Charts 161 

Notice of Meeting Letters to all affected retirees – March 31, 2016 165 

10



Attachment A

11



12



13



Attachment B

14



15



16



17



18



Attachment C

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Attachment D

31



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 1 of 11 

Chart 1: 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

A
u

g-
0

2

O
ct

-0
2

D
ec

-0
2

Fe
b

-0
3

A
p

r-
0

3

Ju
n

-0
3

A
u

g-
0

3

O
ct

-0
3

D
ec

-0
3

Fe
b

-0
4

A
p

r-
0

4

Ju
n

-0
4

A
u

g-
0

4

O
ct

-0
4

D
ec

-0
4

Fe
b

-0
5

A
p

r-
0

5

Ju
n

-0
5

A
u

g-
0

5

O
ct

-0
5

D
ec

-0
5

Fe
b

-0
6

A
p

r-
0

6

Ju
n

-0
6

A
u

g-
0

6

O
ct

-0
6

D
ec

-0
6

Fe
b

-0
7

A
p

r-
0

7

Ju
n

-0
7

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Gabriel Adebiyi
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR 

7/19/2007

Total FAS   
$137,615 

6.6% Increase in 
FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$32,577 On-Call Pay In FAS    
$8,523 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 
35.43% Increase Over Pre-FAS 

32



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 2 of 11 

Chart 2: 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Se
p

-0
3

N
o

v-
0

3

Ja
n

-0
4

M
ar

-0
4

M
ay

-0
4

Ju
l-

0
4

Se
p

-0
4

N
o

v-
0

4

Ja
n

-0
5

M
ar

-0
5

M
ay

-0
5

Ju
l-

0
5

Se
p

-0
5

N
o

v-
0

5

Ja
n

-0
6

M
ar

-0
6

M
ay

-0
6

Ju
l-

0
6

Se
p

-0
6

N
o

v-
0

6

Ja
n

-0
7

M
ar

-0
7

M
ay

-0
7

Ju
l-

0
7

Se
p

-0
7

N
o

v-
0

7

Ja
n

-0
8

M
ar

-0
8

M
ay

-0
8

Ju
l-

0
8

Se
p

-0
8

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Elaine Glimme
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours R29 (Furlough Without Pay) On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

10/1/2008

Total FAS   
$121,560 

14.72% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$15,601 On-Call Pay In FAS      
$15,601 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 

33



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 3 of 11 

Chart 3 : 

 Switch from Comp Time coding to On-Call Time coding 27 months prior to retirement date.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

M
ar

-0
7

M
ay

-0
7

Ju
l-

0
7

Se
p

-0
7

N
o

v-
0

7

Ja
n

-0
8

M
ar

-0
8

M
ay

-0
8

Ju
l-

0
8

Se
p

-0
8

N
o

v-
0

8

Ja
n

-0
9

M
ar

-0
9

M
ay

-0
9

Ju
l-

0
9

Se
p

-0
9

N
o

v-
0

9

Ja
n

-1
0

M
ar

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

Ju
l-

1
0

Se
p

-1
0

N
o

v-
1

0

Ja
n

-1
1

M
ar

-1
1

M
ay

-1
1

Ju
l-

1
1

Se
p

-1
1

N
o

v-
1

1

Ja
n

-1
2

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Scott Hanson
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On- Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hours Pay OCP -  OT Comp Hours Taken On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

2/29/2012

Total FAS   
$166,202 

16.69% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$46,597 On-Call Pay In FAS
$23,772 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS
104.15% Increase Over Pre-FAS

34



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 4 of 11 

Chart 4: 

 
 
 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

O
ct

-0
4

D
ec

-0
4

Fe
b

-0
5

A
p

r-
0

5

Ju
n

-0
5

A
u

g-
0

5

O
ct

-0
5

D
ec

-0
5

Fe
b

-0
6

A
p

r-
0

6

Ju
n

-0
6

A
u

g-
0

6

O
ct

-0
6

D
ec

-0
6

Fe
b

-0
7

A
p

r-
0

7

Ju
n

-0
7

A
u

g-
0

7

O
ct

-0
7

D
ec

-0
7

Fe
b

-0
8

A
p

r-
0

8

Ju
n

-0
8

A
u

g-
0

8

O
ct

-0
8

D
ec

-0
8

Fe
b

-0
9

A
p

r-
0

9

Ju
n

-0
9

A
u

g-
0

9

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Dena Hutchin
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OVT - Overtime Earnings Other On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

10/1/2009

Total FAS      
$152,793 

13.83% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$35,298 On-Call Pay In FAS 
$18,567 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 
110.97% Increase Over Pre-FAS 

35



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 5 of 11 

Chart 5: 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

M
ar

-0
6

M
ay

-0
6

Ju
l-

0
6

Se
p

-0
6

N
o

v-
0

6

Ja
n

-0
7

M
ar

-0
7

M
ay

-0
7

Ju
l-

0
7

Se
p

-0
7

N
o

v-
0

7

Ja
n

-0
8

M
ar

-0
8

M
ay

-0
8

Ju
l-

0
8

Se
p

-0
8

N
o

v-
0

8

Ja
n

-0
9

M
ar

-0
9

M
ay

-0
9

Ju
l-

0
9

Se
p

-0
9

N
o

v-
0

9

Ja
n

-1
0

M
ar

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

Ju
l-

1
0

Se
p

-1
0

N
o

v-
1

0

Ja
n

-1
1

M
ar

-1
1

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Eric Jonnson
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

3/31/2011

Total FAS   
$159,903 

5.82% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$31,509 On-Call Pay In FAS 
$8,798 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 
38.74% Increase Over Pre-FAS

36



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 6 of 11 

Chart 6: 

 Switch from Comp Time coding to On-Call Time coding 33 months prior to retirement date.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

N
o

v-
0

7

Ja
n

-0
8

M
ar

-0
8

M
ay

-0
8

Ju
l-

0
8

Se
p

-0
8

N
o

v-
0

8

Ja
n

-0
9

M
ar

-0
9

M
ay

-0
9

Ju
l-

0
9

Se
p

-0
9

N
o

v-
0

9

Ja
n

-1
0

M
ar

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

Ju
l-

1
0

Se
p

-1
0

N
o

v-
1

0

Ja
n

-1
1

M
ar

-1
1

M
ay

-1
1

Ju
l-

1
1

Se
p

-1
1

N
o

v-
1

1

Ja
n

-1
2

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
l-

1
2

Se
p

-1
2

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Sonny Khoo
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hours Pay On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

11/1/2012

Total FAS     
$183,234 

19.41% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay $53,494 On-Call Pay In FAS 

$29,786 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 
125.64% Increase Over Pre-FAS 

37



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 7 of 11 

Chart 7: 

 Switch from Comp Time coding to On-Call Time coding 28 months prior to retirement date.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Sue Loyd
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hours Pay On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

3/31/2012

Total FAS   
$151,022 

19.55% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$28,948 On-Call Pay In FAS
$24,698 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS
581.02% Increase Over Pre-FAS

38



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 8 of 11 

Chart 8: 

 Switch from Comp Time coding to On-Call Time coding 12 months prior to retirement date.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

D
ec

-0
6

Fe
b

-0
7

A
p

r-
0

7

Ju
n

-0
7

A
u

g-
0

7

O
ct

-0
7

D
ec

-0
7

Fe
b

-0
8

A
p

r-
0

8

Ju
n

-0
8

A
u

g-
0

8

O
ct

-0
8

D
ec

-0
8

Fe
b

-0
9

A
p

r-
0

9

Ju
n

-0
9

A
u

g-
0

9

O
ct

-0
9

D
ec

-0
9

Fe
b

-1
0

A
p

r-
1

0

Ju
n

-1
0

A
u

g-
1

0

O
ct

-1
0

D
ec

-1
0

Fe
b

-1
1

A
p

r-
1

1

Ju
n

-1
1

A
u

g-
1

1

O
ct

-1
1

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Charles Nicholson
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hours Paid On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

12/1/2011

Total FAS     
$161,854 

28.65% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$36,042 On-Call Pay In FAS
$36,042 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS

39



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 9 of 11 

Chart 9: 

 Switch from Comp Time coding to On-Call Time coding 25 months prior to retirement date.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

M
ar

-0
8

M
ay

-0
8

Ju
l-

0
8

Se
p

-0
8

N
o

v-
0

8

Ja
n

-0
9

M
ar

-0
9

M
ay

-0
9

Ju
l-

0
9

Se
p

-0
9

N
o

v-
0

9

Ja
n

-1
0

M
ar

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

Ju
l-

1
0

Se
p

-1
0

N
o

v-
1

0

Ja
n

-1
1

M
ar

-1
1

M
ay

-1
1

Ju
l-

1
1

Se
p

-1
1

N
o

v-
1

1

Ja
n

-1
2

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
l-

1
2

Se
p

-1
2

N
o

v-
1

2

Ja
n

-1
3

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Neal Price
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hours Pay On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR 

2/23/2013

Total FAS      
$162,274 

22.20% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$48,432 On-Call Pay In FAS
$29,474 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 
155.47% Increase Over Pre-FAS 

40



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 10 of 11 

Chart 10: 

 Switch from Comp Time coding to On-Call Time coding 22 months prior to retirement date.

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Ju
l-

0
9

Se
p

-0
9

N
o

v-
0

9

Ja
n

-1
0

M
ar

-1
0

M
ay

-1
0

Ju
l-

1
0

Se
p

-1
0

N
o

v-
1

0

Ja
n

-1
1

M
ar

-1
1

M
ay

-1
1

Ju
l-

1
1

Se
p

-1
1

N
o

v-
1

1

Ja
n

-1
2

M
ar

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
l-

1
2

Se
p

-1
2

N
o

v-
1

2

Ja
n

-1
3

M
ar

-1
3

M
ay

-1
3

Ju
l-

1
3

Se
p

-1
3

N
o

v-
1

3

Ja
n

-1
4

M
ar

-1
4

M
ay

-1
4

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Michael Wedl
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hrs Pay OCP (HCP) OT Comp Hours Taken On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS
DOR

Total FAS   
$147,336 

6.68% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$31,505 On-Call Pay In FAS
$9,223 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS
41.39% Increase Over Pre-FAS

41



Retired HazMat Spec II – On-Call Pension Review 

Attachment D – Paid On-Call Hours Five Years Preceding Retirement Date: 

Page 11 of 11 

Chart 11: 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

A
p

r-
0

9

Ju
n

-0
9

A
u

g-
0

9

O
ct

-0
9

D
ec

-0
9

Fe
b

-1
0

A
p

r-
1

0

Ju
n

-1
0

A
u

g-
1

0

O
ct

-1
0

D
ec

-1
0

Fe
b

-1
1

A
p

r-
1

1

Ju
n

-1
1

A
u

g-
1

1

O
ct

-1
1

D
ec

-1
1

Fe
b

-1
2

A
p

r-
1

2

Ju
n

-1
2

A
u

g-
1

2

O
ct

-1
2

D
ec

-1
2

Fe
b

-1
3

A
p

r-
1

3

Ju
n

-1
3

A
u

g-
1

3

O
ct

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

Fe
b

-1
4

O
n

-C
al

l C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
/O

n
 C

al
l H

o
u

rs

Jerry Yoshioka
On Call/Comp Hours Paid Out 5 Years Before Retirement Date

and On-Call Compensation Paid

D33 - On-Call Hours OTE - Overtime Comp Excess Hrs Pay On-Call Compensation Paid

FAS 
DOR 

3/28/2014 

Total FAS   
$172,686 

9.03% Increase 
in FAS Due to  
Additional  
On-Call Pay 

$51,734 On-Call Pay In FAS 
$14,307 Additional On-Call Pay In FAS over pre-FAS 
38.23% Increase Over Pre-FAS 

42



Attachment E

43



44



Attachment F

45



46



47



Attachment G

48



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

POLICY GOVERNING THE OVERPAYMENT OR UNDERPAYMENT 

OF MEMBER BENEFITS 

Adopted: 12/10/2014 

I. INTRODUCTION

The Board of Retirement ("Board") has a fiduciary obligation to the retirement fund to conserve 
fund assets and protect the integrity of the fund, for the benefit of the members and beneficiaries 
("Members") of the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association ("CCCERA"). 

Members have a right to accurate pension benefit payments.  Except as determined by a court of 
law or this Board pursuant to this Policy, no Member has the right to receive or retain retirement 
benefit payments that exceed the amounts to which a Member is entitled, and no Member should 
be deprived of any benefit payments that he or she is entitled to receive.  Subject to all applicable 
laws, it shall be CCCERA's policy to remit to a Member the amount of any underpayment of 
benefits, and to make every reasonable effort to recover from a Member the amount of any 
overpayment of benefits consistent with this Policy and the procedures established herein by the 
Board. 

Accordingly, after discovery of an overpayment or underpayment of benefits, and within a 
reasonable period of time after written notification to the affected Member, CCCERA will adjust 
future benefit payments to the Member to reflect the correct total amount to which the Member is 
entitled, as indicated below; and will pay or assess the Member for the overpayment or 
underpayment, as the case may be, in a lump sum, installment payments, adjustments to future 
monthly benefits, or a combination of these methods. 

This Policy is designed for use when calculation and other errors affect an individual member's 
retirement benefits.  In the event of a system-wide error that affects multiple members' benefits, 
the Board may implement a system-wide correction process that it determines is appropriate under 
all the circumstances. 

In the event of any inconsistency between applicable law and this Policy, the law shall take 
precedence. 

II. PURPOSE

The purpose of this Policy is to set forth procedures for handling the overpayment and 
underpayment of benefits to members. 

49



- 2 -

III. POLICY

A. Overpayment of Benefits To Members

1. CCCERA will adjust the Member’s monthly benefit going forward to the correct amount
at the earliest practical time after discovering the error.

2. CCCERA shall take all reasonable steps to recover the full amount of all overpayments,
with "appropriate interest," subject to the provisions of this Policy and applicable law.  If
the overpayment was due to fraudulent, improper or inaccurate information provided to
CCCERA by the member, appropriate interest shall be CCCERA's actuarially assumed rate
of return that was applicable during the period in which the overpayments were made,
running until such amounts are fully repaid.  If the overpayment was the result of an error
by CCCERA or the member's employer, appropriate interest shall be 3% per annum during
the period in which the overpayments were made, running until such amounts are fully
repaid.

3. CCCERA will recover overpayments by (a) a lump sum payment from the Member, (b)
periodic installment payments from the member or (c) offsetting the amount to be
recovered against future benefits, over a period of time as determined by the Board, or a
combination of these methods; unless the Board, in its discretion and because of legal or
practical considerations, determines that another process is warranted.

4. The Board believes that considerations of cost effectiveness make it prudent and reasonable
to pursue recovery of overpayments only where the cumulative total amount overpaid to
the Member is $50 or more.  Accordingly, the Retirement CEO is authorized to not seek
recovery of any overpayments where the total amount overpaid to the Member is less than
$50.

5. The Retirement CEO shall have authority, on the advice of legal counsel, to compromise
recovery of overpayments when the total amount of overpayment, not including interest, is
less than $5,000.  Only the Board may compromise claims in which the total amount of
overpayment, not including interest, is $5,000 or more.  Among other things, the likelihood
of collection, the cost of collection, the amount of possible recovery and extreme hardship
to the member will be considered by the Retirement CEO and/or the Board when
determining whether to compromise a claim.  Compromising claims may include a
different method of repayment than is otherwise provided by this Policy and/or a partial
forgiveness of the amounts overpaid.  The Retirement CEO and Board will also consider
seeking recovery from the employer.

6. The Board adopts the following procedures for accomplishing the recovery of overpaid
benefits:

A. Upon discovery of an overpayment, CCCERA shall send a letter by certified mail,
return receipt requested, or by express delivery service, to the Member advising the
Member of the overpayment and proposing a repayment schedule, as follows:

50



- 3 -

i. The letter will identify the circumstances of the overpayment and the fact
that adjustments will be made to all future benefit payments.

ii. The letter will request payment to CCCERA of the amount overpaid, subject
to the provisions of this Policy.

iii. The letter will include an agreement to repay excess benefits and a consent
form for the spouse or beneficiaries, if applicable.

iv. The agreement to repay excess benefits will provide three options, one of
which may be selected by the Member:

(1) Option 1 — equal installments over the same length of time that the
overpayments occurred, with appropriate interest (as that phrase is
defined in No. 2 above) applied during the overpayment period and
during the repayment period.

(2) Option 2 — lump sum payment to CCCERA for the full amount
overpaid, with appropriate interest (as that phrase is defined in No. 2
above) applied during the overpayment period.

(3) Option 3 — reduction of monthly benefit to zero until the overpayment
is paid in full, with appropriate interest (as that phrase is defined in No. 2
above) applied during the overpayment period and during the repayment
period.

v. The letter and agreement to repay excess benefits will provide that Option
3 will go into effect by default if a written response from the Member is not
received within 30 days following the date the letter was delivered.

B. If the amount of the overpayment, not including interest, is $5,000 or more,
CCCERA staff will attempt to contact the Member by phone to schedule a meeting
to discuss the contents of the letter before the letter is sent out for delivery.

C. CCCERA may pursue all legal remedies to collect overpayments, including making
a claim on an estate or trust, if appropriate.

D. Upon the death of the Member before full repayment has been made, CCCERA
shall pursue a claim or claims against the Member’s estate, survivors, heirs and/or
beneficiaries to recover the unpaid amounts.

E. CCCERA will maintain a permanent record of all amounts of overpayments and
the repayment to CCCERA of those overpayments.

B. Underpayment of Benefits To Members

1. When CCCERA has underpaid benefits, the Member shall be entitled to a prospective
adjustment to his or her retirement benefits necessary to correct the underpayment, as well

51



- 4 -

as a lump sum payment for all past underpayments, with interest at CCCERA's actuarially 
assumed rate(s) of return throughout the applicable period of underpayment.  Interest shall 
accrue on each underpayment amount from the date of the underpayment to the date of the 
lump sum corrective payment.  The payment shall be made as soon as is reasonably 
practicable following CCCERA's discovery of the underpayment. 

2. If a Member who was underpaid benefits has died prior to payment of the lump sum amount
due, the following procedures will be followed:

A. Member With Designated Beneficiary

• If the Member has named a designated beneficiary, the payment will be made
directly to the designated beneficiary.  See CERL Section 31452.7.

B. Member Without Designated Beneficiary

• If there is an open estate (i.e., no order for final distribution yet), payment will
be made to the estate (through the personal representative).

• If final distribution of the estate has already been made, CCCERA staff will
review the order for final distribution to determine how assets that were
unknown at the time of final distribution are to be distributed under the order.
Payment will then be made in compliance with the order for final distribution,
if possible.

• If an estate was not established, distribution will be made in accordance with
any applicable and valid Affidavit for Payment of Personal Property on file with
CCCERA.  See Prob. Code Section 13101.

• CCCERA staff shall make reasonable efforts to locate the person(s) entitled to
payment by sending a letter by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the
last known address of each such person, or by other means of similar intended
effect.  The letter shall request written confirmation that the person entitled to
payment still lives at that address and will accept payment.  Upon receipt of
such written confirmation, the payment will be mailed to that person at that
address.  See CERL Section 31783.5(b).

• If, after taking the above steps, CCCERA staff has not been able locate a person
entitled to payment, CCCERA shall hold the funds on behalf of that person for
five years.  If the funds are not claimed within five years, the funds may be
transferred into the system's pension reserve fund.  If someone later appears to
claim the funds, the Board will consider such claims on a case-by-case basis.
See CERL Section 31783.5(c).

• CCCERA will maintain a permanent record of all amounts of outstanding
refunds of underpayments and any amounts that have been transferred into the
pension reserve fund.

52



- 5 -

• In cases where there is no designated beneficiary and the total amount of
underpayment is less than $50, CCCERA staff need not take proactive measures
to locate the person(s) entitled to such funds.  All claims presented to CCCERA,
however, will be considered regardless of size.

3. Underpayments of $5 or less will only be refunded at the request of the member.

53



Attachment H

54



Member Name

Retirement 

Date

Current 

Monthly 

Pension a/o 

01/01/2017

Adjusted 

Monthly 

Pension a/o 

02/01/2017

Difference 

Between Current 

& Adjusted 

Prospective 

Monthly Pension

Cumulative Pension 

Overpayment Since 

Retirement Date 

(Without Interest)

Cumulative Interest 

Applied to 

Difference Between 

Current & Adjusted 

Prospective 

Monthly Pension

Cumulative Pension 

Overpayment Since 

Retirement Date 

(With Interest)

Adebiyi, Gabriel 7/19/2007 7,144.76$     6,750.89$   393.87$   40,553.48$   17,392.49$   57,945.97$   

Glimme, Elaine 10/1/2008 6,236.59$     5,432.97$   803.62$   78,234.22$   28,771.63$   107,005.85$   

Hanson, Scott 2/29/2012 5,596.31$     4,879.61$   716.70$   43,400.71$   8,790.41$   52,191.12$   

Hutchin, Dena 10/1/2009 7,405.92$     6,600.68$   805.24$   65,766.64$   20,477.30$   86,243.94$   

Jonnson, Eric 3/31/2011 9,779.95$     9,241.79$   538.16$   35,282.16$   8,403.97$   43,686.13$   

Khoo, Sonny 11/1/2012 11,009.58$  9,115.24$   1,894.34$   109,496.28$   19,551.38$   129,047.66$   

Loyd, Sue 3/31/2012 8,529.76$     7,110.22$   1,419.54$   83,096.54$   16,399.98$   99,496.52$   

Nicholson, Charles 12/1/2011 9,996.27$     7,768.89$   2,227.38$   130,292.96$   27,006.47$   157,299.43$   

Price, Neal 2/23/2013 7,969.71$     6,937.29$   1,032.42$   46,922.97$   7,137.98$   54,060.96$   

Wedl, Michael 7/1/2014 5,328.22$     4,994.68$   333.54$   10,064.73$   979.27$   11,044.00$   

Yoshioka, Jerry 3/28/2014 7,916.23$     $7,259.99 656.24$   21,745.05$   2,338.78$   24,083.83$   

Total 664,855.75$   157,249.65$   822,105.40$   

55



Attachment I

56



57



58



Notice of Meeting Letters - January 3, 2017

59



January 3, 2017

Mr. David Twa
Contra Costa County Administrator
651 Pine St.
10th Floor
Martinez, CA 94553

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Twa,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to the retirement allowances for the eleven retired Hazardous Materials Specialist II
are warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of the members’ retirement allowances. You may submit
written materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be
included with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or
by Friday, January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the
purpose of the hearing are enclosed.

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

/…2

60



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

Cc: Dr. William Walker, Contra Costa County Health Services Director and Health Officer
Randall Sawyer, Contra Costa County Chief Environmental Health & Hazardous Materials
Officer
Robert Campbell, Contra Costa County Auditor Controller
Dianne Dinsmore, Contra Costa County Director of Human Resources

61



January 3, 2017

Gabriel Adebiyi

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Adebiyi,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

62



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

63



1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

January 3, 2017

Elaine Glimme

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Ms. Glimme,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

As you may recall from my correspondence of March 31, 2016 materials were sent to you
including the memo to the Board of Retirement to consider and take possible action on at its May
4, 2016 meeting to make pension adjustments to retired Hazardous Materials Specialist II
members that had unusual increases in final average salary and specifically unusual increases in
on-call compensation. Per my correspondence of April 20, 2016 which indicated that the Board
of Retirement would not take any action at its May 4, 2016 meeting to adjust your pension
allowance, that finding was based on the original review criteria that the Board had directed.

However, the Board chose to continue its hearing from May 4, 2016 and provided staff with
further direction to review the materials and testimony that were submitted at the meeting and to
make further information requests pursuant to the review of on-call compensation paid to
Hazardous Materials Specialist II in their final average compensation period. This further review
of on-call compensation that you received in your final average compensation period has led to
the inclusion of your pension calculation within the Hazardous Materials Specialist II group of
members that retired between 2004 and 2014 that the Board will be considering and taking
possible action on.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

/…2

64



Ms. Elaine Glimme
Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

65



January 3, 2017

Scott Hanson

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Hanson,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

66



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

67



January 3, 2017

Dena Hutchin

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Ms. Hutchin,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

68



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

69



January 3, 2017

Eric Jonsson

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Jonsson,

Pursuant to your written direction of July 18, 2016 to forward notices and correspondence
relating to CCCERA pension adjustment hearings to an alternate address, please find the
enclosed copy of the Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable
Compensation for Retirement Purposes.

The original notice along with the enclosed Board meeting material was sent to your home
address on record with CCCERA as well.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

70



January 3, 2017

Eric Jonsson

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Jonsson,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

71



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

72



January 3, 2017

Sonny Khoo

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Khoo,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

73



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

74



January 3, 2017

Sue Loyd

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Ms. Loyd,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

75



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

76



January 3, 2017

Charles Nicholson

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Nicholson,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

77



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

78



January 3, 2017

Neal Price

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Price,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

79



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

80



January 3, 2017

Michael Wedl

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Wedl,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

81



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

82



January 3, 2017

Jerry Yoshioka

Re: Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on Includable Compensation for
Retirement Purposes

Dear Mr. Yoshioka,

This letter will serve to inform you that the Board of Retirement will continue its Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes which the Board had begun at its May 4,
2016 meeting. This is a continuation of the review of pension calculations of eleven retired
Hazardous Materials Specialist II (V4VC) members that had unusual increases in final average
salaries and unusual increases in on-call compensation.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board is scheduled to hear the matter of whether
adjustments to your retirement allowance is warranted at its regular meeting:

February 8, 2017
9:00 a.m.
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, CA 94520

This meeting is your opportunity to present to the Board your position and any information you
believe is relevant to the calculation of your retirement allowance. You may submit written
materials relevant to this issue in advance of the Board Meeting. The materials will be included
with the agenda distributed to the Board and the public if received by CCCERA on or by Friday
January 27, 2017. The public meeting materials prepared by CCCERA for the purpose of the
hearing are enclosed.

/…2

83



Notice of Continuation of Retirement Board Hearing on
Includable Compensation for Retirement Purposes
January 3, 2017
pg. 2

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org

Note that Retirement Board meetings are open, public meetings, and any member of the public
may comment or present information to the Board. Any written materials you submit will be
made public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss items relating to this matter, please contact me
at (925) 521-3960

Sincerely,

Wrally Dutkiewicz
Compliance Officer

84



May 4, 2016 Memo to the Board of Retirement

85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189

















































































































































Response  to February 8, 2017 Memo 
Jerry Yoshioka-part 1

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



Response  to February 8, 2017 Memo 
Jerry Yoshioka-part 2

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



Response  to February 8, 2017 Memo 
Jerry Yoshioka-part 3

54



55



Recording of the May 4, 2016 Board Meeting was included with members response.

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



Response  to February 8, 2017 Memo 
Jerry Yoshioka-part 4

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



Response to February 8, 2017 Memo
Neal Price

216



217



Response to February 8, 2017 Memo
Scott Hanson

218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



~~~c -~~'~·BA ...... . . COUNTY ~. , -
Emp loyees' Retirement Association 

Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

Agenda Item 
#10 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: February 8, 2017 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer 

Subject: Consider and Take Possible Action Pertaining to Member Paul Andrews: 
Prior Board Exclusion of Excess On Call Pay From Pensionable Compensation 

Background 

At its May 4, 2016 meeting, the Board directed that Mr. Andrews' excess on-call pay be brought 
back to the Board at a future meeting. The purpose of this item is to seek clarification and 
direction from the Board pertaining to this item, in light of the Board's anticipated consideration 
of other former Hazardous Materials Specialists lIs' excess on-call pay. 

On May 6,2015, the Board conducted a publicly-noticed review of the information available to 
the Board, including information provided by Mr. Andrews, his employer, and CCCERA. (May 
6,2015 Board Meeting, Agenda Item 9). Mr. Andrews had retired in 2014 and CCCERA had 
already excluded excess on-call pay from his retirement calculations, pending the Board's 
consideration of the item. On May 6,2015, the Board determined that: 1) the on-call pay 
excluded from Mr. Andrews' benefit calculation was not required and worked by all in the grade 
or class during the same time period and is excludable as non-pensionable overtime pay and 2) 
the on-call pay is not to be included in Mr. Andrews' pension because the member caused his 
final compensation to be "improperly increased" by voluntarily signing up for on-call work at the 
end of his career beyond what was required of all during the same time period. The Board 
further determined that in conducting Mr. Andrews' benefit calculation, CCCERA is to use the 
average of the minimum number of on-call hours that were required and worked. 

The Board's May 4, 2016 direction that Mr. Andrews' excess on-call pay be brought back to the 
Board requires further direction and clarification. Specifically, if the Board seeks to shift the 
methodology of calculation, there appear to be two calculation options: 
Option 1 - using the average of the minimum number of on-call hours that were required and 
worked by all Hazardous Materials Specialists lIs. 
Option 2 - using the increase in on-call pay received by the member in the year preceding his 
Final Average Salary 12-month period. 
If the Board wishes to re-examine the pensionability of Mr. Andrews' excess on-call pay without 
changing the calculation methodology, staff does not anticipate additional data will be needed. 



The member will be provided with sufficient notice and an opportunity to provide information at 
a later date should the matter be considered by the Board of Retirement. 

Recommendation 

Consider and take possible action to provide additional clarification and direction pertaining to 
future review of Mr. Andrews' pension. 

1355 Willow Way Suite 221 Concord CA 94520 925.521.3960 FAX: 925.521.3969 www.cccera.org 













ilw_\{~:Af 
It"' u ~ u d able 

April 26-28, 2017 • The Beverly Hilton • Los Angeles, CA 

Roundtable Co-Chairs: 
Aoiffin Devitt Scott Evans, CFA 

Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

Agenda Item 
#12a. 

Chicago Policemen's Annuity and Benefit Fund New York City Retirement System 

Advisory Board 
Christopher J. Ailman 
CalSTRS 

Timothy Allen 
Tacoma Employees' Retirement 
System 

Cheryl D. Alston 
Employees' Retirement Fund of the 
City of Dallas 

Arn Andrews 
City of San Jose Department of 
Retirement Services 

Jagdeep Singh Bachher 
University of California 

Carlos Borromeo 
Arkansas Public Employees' 
Retirement System 

Derek M. Brodersen, CFA 
Alberta Teachers' Retirement Fund 

Gary Bruebaker 
Washington State Investment Board 

Jerome Burns 
Michigan Municipal Employees 
Retirement System 

TJ. Carlson 
Texas Municipal Retirement System 

Vijoy Paul Chattergy 
Hawaii Employees' Retirement 
System 

Matthew Clark, CFA 
South Dakota Investment Council 

William J. Coaker 
San Francisco City & County 
Employees' Retirement System 

Elizabeth Crisafi 
San Diego City Employees' Retirement 
System 

Bruce H. Cundick 
Utah Retirement Systems 

Michelle Cunningham, CFA 
CalSTRS 

Steve Davis 
Sacramento County Employees' 
Retirement System 

Jonathan Grabel 
New Mexico Public Employees' 
Retirement Association 

Robert Jacksha 
New Mexico Educational Retirement 
Board 

Rodney June 
Los Angeles City Employees 
Retirement System 

Farouki Majeed 
School Employees Retirement System 
of Ohio (SERS) 

Sam Masoudi 
Wyoming Retirement System 

Robert M. Maynard 
Public Employee Retirement System 
of Idaho 

Christopher McDonough 
State of New Jersey Investments 

Andrew Palmer 
Maryland State Retirement and 
Pension System 

David Peden 
Kentucky Retirement Systems 

Mansco Perry, III, CFA, CAIA, CIPM 
Minnesota State Board of Investment 

Donald Pierce 
San Bernardino County Employees' 
Retirement Association 

Timothy Price, CFA 
Contra Costa County Employees' 
Retirement Association 

Sarah Samuels 
Massachusetts Pension Reserves 
Investment Management Board 
(Mass PRIM) 

Stephen Sexauer 
San Diego County Employees 
Retirement Association 

J. Scott Simon 
Fire & Police Pension Association of 
Colorado 

Ajit Singh 
Houston Firefighters' Relief and 
Retirement Fund 

Jon Spinney 
New Brunswick Investment 
Management Company 

Lorrie Tingle 
Public Employees' Retirement System 
of Mississippi 

Tom Tull, CFA 
Employees Retirement System of 
Texas 

David Villa 
State of Wisconsin Investment Board 

Ashbel C. Williams 
State Board of Administration of 
Florida 

Steve Yoakum 
Public School & Education Employee 
Retirement Systems of Missouri 



Public Funds Roundtable - ~l11s6tutiona.~ ~mrestor 

Narrator: You Ire traveling through another dimension, a dimension not only of sight 
and sound but of mind. A journey into a wondrous land whose boundaries are that of 
imagination. That's the signpost up ahead -your next stop, the Twilight Zone! 

- Rod Sterling, introduction, The Twilight Zone (season 2) 

Introduction 

During a period of unprecedented geo-political challenges, negative real interest rates and low yields across all asset 

classes, investment portfolios have become particularly complex to manage. Faced with the dilemma of either lowering 

expectations and/or increasing risks, how can plan sponsors best balance their forward-planning investment strategies 

for the long term when the near and intermediate-term assumptions are meaningfully lower? If a more aggressive 

approach is required to meet mandated obligations, will investors pay for these strategies or, instead, build out their 

passive allocations? And how will the capital markets and, subsequently, public plan portfolios be impacted by the new 

Trump administration in tandem with a Republican-controlled Congress? 

The 2017 Public Funds Roundtable will explore trending sets of challenges amid a backdrop of continuous industry 

disruption. Through a combination of plenary sessions, workshops, case studies and discussion groups, delegates will 

focus on innovative ways that plan sponsors are managing their portfolios amid economic and financial uncertainty. The 

Roundtable program will provide a closed-door, private forum for participants to candidly exchange ideas with 

colleagues and peers on how to most effectively utilize the resources at their disposal to successfully guide their plans 

forward while also sharing intelligence and insight to share with committees, boards and staff. Learn from the best about 

how to adapt in an ever-revolutionizing industry. 

Tuesday, April 25, 2017 (Pre-Roundtable) 

4.30 

Registration for Public Plan Sponsors 

5.00 

Private Session for Public Plan Sponsors: Case Study & Conversation 
Join us for a special investor-only private conversation to be held on the eve of the Roundtable's official start. Share 

ideas, review the program, get the lay ofthe land, and meet your peers in an informal and private setting before the 

event starts. This session will be followed by cocktails & dinner at The Beverly Hilton Aqua Star Pool. 

6:00 -8:00 

Welcome Reception & Dinner for All Delegates at the Beverly Hilton Aqua Star Pool 

Wednesday, April 26, 2016 

7:15 - 8.15 

Buffet Breakfast and Registration 



Public Funds Roundtable - Institv.tiom~.f ~;;westor 

8:15 - 8:30 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks 

Robin Coffey, Executive Director, Institutional Investor Memberships 

Kip McDaniel, Chief Content Officer and Group Editorial Director, Institutional Investor 

Leanna Orr, Global Content Director, Investor Intelligence Network 

8:30- 9:15 

It's a Mad, Mad, Mad, Mad World 
Tectonic shifts around the globe continue unabated . This has been highlighted by the recent U.S. elections, Brexit, an 

uptick in terrorism, growing political instability, persistent low growth and interest rate uncertainty. Along with this 

continuous parade of impactful events comes more frequent and severe spikes of volatility. Changing demographics and 

accelerated information cycles only further serve to stress the process. And at the end of the day mandated pension 

obligations must be met. This panel will discuss and debate the investment implications ofthis new world order. 

Specifically, how can investors parse through the noise, identify the opportunities resulting from key events and know 

when it's time to pivot, or not? 

Moderator: Kristopher 'Kip' McDaniel, Chief Content Officer and Group Editorial Director, Institutional Investor 

Derek Broderson, Chief Investment Officer, Alberta Teachers Retirement Fund 

Dame Amelia C. Fawcett, Chairman, Hedge Fund Standards Board 

Joel Greenblatt, Managing Partner & Co-ClO, Gotham Asset Management 

Additional panelist to be announced 

9:15 -10:05 

Alternative Investments: The Devil You Know? 
Despite the prospect of rising interest rates, increasing inflation, and diminished returns in the equities market, 

alternative investments remain a big draw for those seeking attractive returns. But in a market that remains 

characterized, compared to the public arena, by significant fees and opaqueness, investors continue to debate whether 

the returns on alternatives justify the high fees and illiquidity risks. Some see the tide turning on alternatives as several 

major public funds have turned away. But others see a necessary culling of the alternative herd that will increase 

opportunities for the survivors and rebuild investor interest. And how one defines the non-traditional aspects of their 

portfolio is often subject to disagreement. Is is a strategy, an asset class or just a fee structure? This panel of investors 

will take a deep dive into the trials and tribulations being generated by current market trends and report on the factors 

that are shaping their decisions about the all of the investment strategies and instruments they are focusing on, with a 

focus on those deemed alternative/diversifying. 

Nathanael Benzaken, CEO, Lyxor Asset Management Inc. 

Adam Berger, Asset Allocation Strategist, Wellington Management 

Bruce Cundick, Chief Investment Officer, Utah State Retirement Systems 

David Villa, Chief Investment Officer, State of Wisconsin Investment Board 

Moderator to be announced 



Public Funds Roundtable -nstitutiona ktvestor 

10:05 - 10:25 

Table Top Discussions 
Seated in small groups, delegates will share their views on the previous panel conversation. Do they agree or disagree, 

and what are the reasons for their views? Are there other factors which should also be taken into consideration? Which 

factors have contributed to investors taking their respective positions and how are they changing their allocations and 

reconstructing their portfolios? As well as sharing knowledge and opinions, each table will be tasked with coming up with 

a set of questions or comments which they must be prepared to pose to the speakers in the subsequent session. 

10.25- 10040 

The Last Word: Table Top Discussion Wrap-Up 
The original speakers will retake the stage, answer questions, and react to comments from the table discussions. 

10040- 11.05 

Coffee Break 

11:05 - 12:00 

Idea Labs: Portfolio Construction - When There is No Alternative ... 
In small "Idea Lab" breakout discussion groups, delegates will share creative ways they are using alternative strategies in 

their portfolios. 

Arn Andrews, Chief Investment Officer, City of San Jose Department of Retirement Services 

Derek Drummond, Managing Analyst, State of Wisconsin Investment Board 

Shaun Martinak, Portfolio Manager, Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan 

Jason Rector, Funds Alpha Analyst, State of Wisconsin Investment Board 

Additional Idea Lab leaders to be announced 

12:00 -1:30 

Seated Lunch and Featured Speaker 

A Candid Look at Today's Headlines 

As one of the most prominent and significant political strategists in the country, Schmidt gives audiences a candid 

insider's perspective on the political news of the day and what it all means from Main Street to Wall Street to Capitol Hill 

and beyond. With no subject off-limits, Schmidt brings his experience, passion, wit and behind-the-scenes anecdotes to 

the table for a lively discussion on today's headlines and the issues facing the new Trump Administration. 

Steve Schmidt, Political Analyst, MSNBC and Renowned Political Strategist 

1:30-1:45 

Transition Time 

1:35-2:20 

Private Opportunities 
As lower returns have crept into the private marketspace, public pensions are re-evaluating these investments alongside 

sustained high fees. How would the prospect of a market correction or recession affect how the investment community 

is assessing current high valuations, low interest rates and fee flexibility? Is the cost of private equity worth increased 



Public Funds Roundtable -nstitutionab hwesto..-

scrutiny from the SEC and other regulatory bodies? The panelists will discuss what their market stance and strategy look 

like, based on their take on liability, assumed rate of return and valuations. 

Moderator: Patrick Adelsbach, Founding Partner and Head of Credit Strategies, Aksia LLC 

Jonathan Grabel, Chief Investment Officer, State of New Mexico Employees Retirement System 

Brett Hickey, Founder & CEO, Star Mountain Capital 

Rick J. Noel, Partner and Head of Global Specialty Finance, Varde 

Steve Sexauer, Chief Investment Officer, San Diego County Employees Retirement Association 

2:20-3:00 

Featured Speaker 

Senior Portfolio Strategist, Bridgewater Associates, LP 

3:00- 3:30 

Coffee Break 

3:30-4:15 

Case Study: Can Co-Investments Give You the Best of Both Worlds? 
Despite all the negative press surrounding alternative investments, there are still very positive stories to share. Using a 

case study format these speaker, representing both the pension and allocator sides of the arrangement, will provide 

insight on their partnership. Particularly how it leveraged each other's core competencies, while, at the same time, 

emphasized greater alignment of interests to effectively meet shared objectives. 

David E. Francl, Managing Director, Absolute Return, San Francisco Employees' Retirement System 

Senior Portfolio Strategist, Blackstone 

4:15-5:00 

Concurrent Workshops: 

1. Leveraging Volatility 
Leveraging volatility can payoff in spades, but for those public plans that are facing funding challenges, getting volatility 

wrong may prove too high a bet. How dynamic is too dynamic? When and where does volatility become too risky? This 

panel will discuss what strategies investors are using to benefit from volatility, dampen it or otherwise thinking about 

how to relate or abandon it altogether. This panel will discuss the opportunities and risks when including allocations to 

volatility-based strategies, the landscape of available solutions, in addition to the key elements for successful 

implementation. 

Moderator: Chris DeMeo, Founding Partner, Nu Paradigm Investment Partners, LLC 

Tarik Dalton, Director of Multi-Strategy, North Carolina Department of State Treasurer 

Michael Warsh, Managing Director, DGV Solutions 

Additional panelists to be announced 

2. Real Assets 
Allocations to real assets-like real estate, agriculture, timber, energy and infrastructure -can potentially help with 

many investment goals, while adding valuable diversification to a traditional stock and bond portfolio. However, adding 

real assets requires a well-defined investment objective, as well as a clear plan for implementation, including the size of 



Public Funds Roundtable - !nstitutiona nvesto· 

the real assets allocation within the overall portfolio, the mix of real assets exposures, and the vehicles by which these 

exposures will be delivered. Whether a real assets allocation is attained through direct exposures or through a liquid real 

assets portfolio, skilled asset allocation capabilities are required to maintain portfolio objectives and react to changing 

market regimes over time. Within this broad group of investments - including energy, real estate, infrastructure, natural 

resources and commodities - many questions need to be addressed. Among these are: What will be the effect of rising 

interest rates? How can dislocations in the energy sector be exploited? Where are we in the real estate market cycle, 

publically and privately? Why are institutions continuing to allocate money to core infrastructure and how does one 

obtain better transparency, lower fees, and more flexible terms? Are there buying opportunities in the commodities 

David Kaposi, Chief Investment Officer, Ontario Power Generation 

Mary Ludgin, Global Head of Research, Heitman Real Estate Investment Management 

Tom Tull, Chief Investment Officer, Employees Retirement System of Texas 

Additional panelists to be announced 

5:45 

Meet in Hotel Lobby for Departure to Spago Beverly Hills 

6:00 

Reception & Dinner at Spago Beverly Hills 

Thursday, Apri127, 2017 

7:15 - 8:30 

Private Breakfast and Conversations: 

e Canadian Plan Sponsors: 
At this year's Roundtable, there will be a private sessions designed to provide an informal dialogue among Canadian plan 

sponsors. Issues for discussion will be designated in advance, based upon audience suggestions. 

James Davis, Chief Investment Officer, OPT rust 

Additional co-chair to be announced 

• Women in Investing 
Recognizing the depth of talent among the women who attend this gathering, we welcome those asset allocators and 

investment consultants to join us in a closed-door session. During this time we will encourage discussion of common 

professional and personal experiences in order for female peers to build a stronger network of relationships and support, 

thereby maximizing their impact and contributions to the industry. 

Sharmila Kassam, Deputy Chief Investment Officer, Employees Retirement System of Texas 

Additional co-chair to be announced 

7:30-8:30 

Buffet Breakfast and General Registration 



Public Funds Roundtable - l~stBtu.tiona~ InvestcL" 

8:30 - 8:45 

Welcome and Introductory Remarks 
Robin Coffey, Executive Director, Institutional Investor Memberships 

Aoifinn Devitt, Chief Investment Officer, Chicago Policemen's Annuity and Benefit Fund 

Kip McDaniel, Chief Content Officer and Group Editorial Director, Institutional Investor 

Leanna Orr, Global Content Director, Investor Intelligence Network 

8:45 - 9:30 

The Macroeconomy and Global Affairs 
Megan Greene, the Chief Economist at Manulife Asset Management, will approach global growth--or the recent lack 

thereof--through the prism of oversupply. While there is an intellectual consensus around the idea that a globally 

coordinated fiscal stimulus is necessary to create enough aggregate demand to sop up this oversupply, politics is going to 

continue to preclude that from happening. Despite recent market hopes that a Trump victory means the US will have a 

massive fiscal stimulus, greater growth, higher inflation and higher rates, the stimulus is likely to disappoint and potential 

growth is unlikely to budge. This period of oversupply and with it low growth, low inflation and low rates, is likely to 

persist for a number of years. She will use this framework to provide a macroeconomic overview for most major 

economies. 

Megan Greene, Chief Economist and Managing Director, Manulife Asset Management 

9:30-10:15 

Oh Canada! 

Tales from the Great North 

As U.S. pensions look toward at a sustained low return environment, the public pension community may look north of 

the border toward Canada's trademark multi-asset, global oriented approach to asset allocation. Although they are 

unfettered by stringent U.S. financial regulations, challenges abound. With a keen understanding that adaptation and 

structural transformation are required for pension fiscal sustainability and the long-term fund management process, 

there's much U.S. plan sponsors can learn from their North American neighbors. And vice-versa! 

Moderator: Alain Bergeron, Senior Vice President, Investments, Mackenzie investments 

Ed Cass, Senior Managing Director and Chief Investment Strategist, Canada Pension Plan Investment Board (CPPIB) 

Daniel Garant, Chief Investment Officer, PSP Investments 

Michael Wissell, Senior Vice-President, Portfolio Construction, Ontario Teachers' Pension Plan 

10:15-10:35 

Table Top Discussions 
Seated in small groups, delegates will share their views on the previous panel conversation. Do they agree or disagree, 

and what are the reasons for their views? Are there other factors which should also be taken into consideration? Which 

factors have contributed to investors taking their respective positions and how are they changing their allocations and 

reconstructing their portfolios? As well as sharing knowledge and opinions, each table will be tasked with coming up with 

a set of questions or comments which they must be prepared to pose to the speakers in the subsequent session. 

10.35- 10.45 

The Last Word: Table Top Discussion Wrap-Up 
The original speakers will retake the stage, answer questions, and react to comments from the table discussions. 



10:45-11:05 

Coffee Break 

11:05-11:50 

Public Funds Roundtable - ~ r1lstitutBonal [n~:e§toP." 

Innovative Asset Allocation: Managing Expectations and Assumptions 
Traditional approaches to asset allocation are coming under intense scrutiny, yet there seems a dearth of new paradigms 

beyond the overused "solution". The crux of the problem remains: how can allocators increase the probability of earning 

required rates of return, mitigate the risk of loss, and improve funded status? This panel will explore how industry 

leaders are re-thinking their asset allocations, investment policy, and strategy in an environment when the only certainty 

is uncertainty. 

Moderator: Laura B. Wirick, Princpal/Consultant, Meketa Investment Group 

Robert Jacksha. Chief Investment Officer, New Mexico Educational Retirement Board 

Timothy Price, CFA, Chief Investment Officer, Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 

Andrew Susser, Executive Managing Director, Head of High Yield, MacKay Shields 

Additional panelists to be announced 

11:50 - 12:45 

Idea Labs: Innovative Asset Allocation 
These think tank discussion groups will discuss and debate the merits of various asset allocation strategies. Delegates will 

explore how the current market experience impacts thinking about diversification, liquidity, and other portfoliO 

attributes that result from the asset allocation process. 

Jay Kloepfer, EVP, Director of Capital Markets and Alternatives Research, Callan Associates Inc. 

David Ourlicht, Commissioner, New York State Insurance Fund 

Mansco Perry, Executive Director & Chief Investment Officer, Minnesota State Board of Investment 

Teresa Troy, Chief Executive Officer, Halifax Regional Municipality Pension Plan 

Additional Idea Lab leaders to be announced 

12:45 - 2:00 

Seated Lunch & Featured Speaker 

Zachary Karabell, President, River Twice Research 

2:00 - 2:10 

Transition Time 

2:10 - 2:45 

Big Data, Machine Learning and the Implications for Investment Management 

Exponential growth in the scale of computation, networking, and usage-and the rapid progress in machine learning and 

related technologies-has been greatly expanding the reach of information technologies. Resulting data-driven 

approaches have led to extremely powerful prediction and optimization techniques that hold great promise in many 

fields, though there are always great challenges. We'll illustrate those opportunities and challenges, but then discuss 

how well-designed investment solutions that harness advanced technologies can drive a meaningful evolution of the 

entire investment process. They can empower allocators to devote time to the highest-value activities, while leveraging 



Public Funds Roundtable - Ilnstitutaomd bwestc,," 

curated portfolio, market, and community insights to unlock significant "organizational alpha" -latent value forfeited to 

organizational inefficiencies. 

Karyn Williams, Head of Client Solutions, Two Sigma 

Alfred Spector, Ph.D., Chief Technology Officer and Head of the Engineering Organization, Two Sigma 

2:45 - 3:20 

Case Study: Teamwork is Dreamwork! 

Creating Opportunities Through Collaboration 

In the constantly shifting ecosystem of financial markets, institutional investors strive for ingenuity, adaptability and 

innovation. Collaboration and cooperation is central to all those qualities. Jagdeep Singh Bachher, Chief Investment 

Officer, VP of Investments at the University of California Endowment, will provide an in-depth overview on how he and 

his team have integrated collaboration into every facet their program. This framework has supported the investment 

office's overall mission to optimally meet the long-term objectives of their various constituents while also fostering an 

environment that is both efficient and innovative. 

Jagdeep Singh Bachher, Chief Investment Officer, University of California 

Dr. Ashby Monk, Executive and Research Director, Stanford Global Projects Center; Senior Research Associate, University 
of Oxford; fmr Senior Advisor to the Chief Investment Officer, University of California 

3:20-4:00 

The Innovators 
Panelists to be announced 

4:00 - 4:15 

Coffee Break 

4:15- 5:00 

The Shark Tank 
Entrepreneurs need more than just a good idea. An in order to turn their dream ideas into reality they must be able to 

clearly pose the value proposition of their idea to potential investors (i.e., The sharks) . But the Sharks have a goal, too -

to get a return on their investment and own a piece of the next big business idea. 

Moderator: Cheryl Alston, Executive Director, Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Dallas 

Nico Sand, Founder & CEO, Zanbato 

Additional panelists to be announced 

6:00 

Departure from Beverly Hilton to Beverly Hills Hotel 

6:30 - 9:00 

Reception & Dinner at the Beverly Hills Hotel 
Cocktails and dinner will be served at one of the most glamorous venues in Beverly Hills, the renowned Beverly Hills 

Hotel. 



Public Funds Roundtable - Hns~itudol1cd hwestor 

Friday, April 28, 2017 

7:15 - 8.30 

Private Breakfast for Heads of Investment Offices 

Rodney June, Chief Investment Officer, Los Angeles City Employees' Retirement System (LACERS) 

Sam Masoudi, Chief Investment Officer, Wyoming Retirement System 

7:45 - 8.45 

Buffet Breakfast and Registration 

8:45- 9:30 

The Search for Alpha: Top Investors Tell You Their Best Ideas 
This panel of senior investment executives will put forth, discuss and debate their views regarding the best sources for 

excess return, while still leaving plenty of time for audience members to poke holes in, or validate, these ideas. 

Moderator: Kristopher 'Kip' McDaniel, Chief Content Officer and Group Editorial Director, Institutional Investor 

Andy Palmer, Chief Investment Officer, Maryland State Retirement and Pension System 

Panelists to be announced 

9:30-10:15 

Retirement on the Rocks 

Why Americans Can 't Get Ahead and How New Savings Policies Can Help 

Last year, the elections made it clear that many Americans are angry and worried about their economic 

security. Families are feeling what we've know for years - they face a number of growing risks today and in their 

retirement years. Jobs and wages have become less secure over the past thirty years while stock and housing markets 

have been volatile. All key economic risks have gone up, making economic security in retirement all the more difficult, if 

not impossible, for many Americans. While the public sector too has experienced retirement challenges, most pUblic 

employees are poised to be self-sufficient in retirement thanks to the continued prevalence of penSions. But for middle 

class private sector workers, policy changes have largely made retirement harder by forcing Americans to face economic 

risks associated with saving for the future on their own. Social Security offers fewer protections because of an increasing 

retirement age, and employees receive less help from their employers than in the past for saving for the future. More 

people have to figure out complex "do-it-yourself" savings options while those who least need to save, because they 

have little risk exposure, tend to receive the greatest tax breaks for saving. The result is massive retirement savings 

shortfalls, uncertainty, and a dire retirement outlook for most Americans. But, there is a way forward. The presentation 

will give a sense on the most promising policy avenues in the changed political landscape to re-build retirement security 

for American families. Implementation will provide a mUlti-pronged approach to solving the multi-layered retirement 

economic security crisis. 

Christian E. Weller, Senior Fellow, Center for American Progress; Professor of Public Policy, McCormack Groduate School 

of Policy and Global Studies, University of Massachusetts, Boston 

10:15 - 10:45 

Coffee Break 



Public Funds Roundtable - Hnstitut10md nves'~m· 

10:45 - 11:30 

Concurrent Workshops: 

I. ESG or OMG 
What does the outlook for ESG (before and after the U.S. election)? How does ESG factor into planned sponsors' 

philosophy and/or portfolio management? How should investors start or adjust thinking about emerging compliance to 

UNPRI standards with regard to their relationship with their board and/or investment committee? These are a few 

questions as climate change has begun to emerge as an increasingly important consideration, which the panel will 

discuss, alongside asset manager selection, investment process, and internal and externa l pressure. 

Dominic Byrne, Director, Global Equities, Standard Life Investments 

Additional panelists to be announced 

II. Emerging Markets: On the Rise or Out of Bounds? 
Although emerging markets looked to be on the rise last year, they've been pushed to the sidelines as the Chinese 

market has stalled temporarily, Brazil has fallen off the map as the country picks up the pieces after ousting President 

Dilma Rousseff and India steps to make itself more investor-friendly. Considering how much China contributes to the 

global markets, what can we expect from the perpetual and literal elephant in the room? Can Latin America regain its 

footing as the new hotbed of growth? This panel will discuss what's on the horizon for emerging (and non-emerging) 

markets - and what investors can look forward to or be ready for in the year ahead. 

Moderator: Andy Iseri, Senior Vice President, Callan Associates Inc. 

Aoifinn Devitt, Chief Investment Officer, Chicago Policemen's Annuity and Benefit Fund 

Don Pierce, Chief investment Officer, San Bernardino County Employees' Retirement Association (SBCERA) 

Michael Rosborough, Investment Director, CalPERS 

Additional panelist to be announced 

11:30 - 12:30 

Plan Governance: Walking the Walk vs. Talking the Talk 
Although public plans differ from one another in many regards, the issues surrounding plan governance remain a 

common thread. With returns expected to remain low for the foreseeable future, coupled with rising pension 

obligations, the strengths and weaknesses of a particular governance plan will only become more glaringly obvious. And 

at the end of the day behind all investment portfolios are the people who are involved in the decision-making process 

and operation. How can these various players - investment staff, Board and Committees, external consultants/advisors 

and plan participants - best align their efforts and interests in order to achieve the optimal outcome? This panel of 

innovative governance thinkers will discuss how they are approaching the landscape with regard to investment policies, 

roles and fiduciary responsibilities, trustee education and communication, staff compensation and talent retention. Have 

their efforts paid off and what work is there still left to do? 

Moderator: Allan Martin, Partner, NEPC LLC 

Steve Russo, Executive Director, Indiana Public Retirement System 

Ruth Ryerson, Executive Director, Wyoming Retirement System 

Scott Simon, Chief Investment Officer, Fire & Police Pension Association of Colorado 

Additional panelist to be announced 

12:30 - 1: 30 

Buffet Luncheon 

Roundtable Concludes 



Investment Programs Through 
Wharton Executive Education 

Portfolio Concepts 
and Management 
May 1-4, 2017 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

In partnership with the International 
Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans 

2017 Offerings 
Refresher Workshop in 
Core Investment Concepts 
September 24, 2017 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania . 

r - · #IFWharton 
\"t · 

Advanced Investments 
Management 
September 25-28, 2017 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

Meeting Date 
02/08/17 

Agenda Item 
#12b. 



The Wharton School 
Investment Programs 2017 

Investment programs offered in conjunction with the Wharton School 
provide investment management education for those with differing 
educational needs and levels of experience. These programs can build 
your skills in portfolio oversight and give you the tools you need to make 
informed investment decisions. 

Who Should Attend 
The Wharton investment programs are designed to meet the needs of fiduciaries from 
both defined benefit and defined contribution plans who represent various industries, 
sizes and geographic areas (United States and Canada), including: 

• Multiemployer and public plan trustees 
• Administrators and staff 
• Human resources and benefits professionals 
• Corporate officers and executives 
• Finance personnel 
• Investment professionals. 

The programs are independent units that may be completed in any sequence. However, we 
recommend individuals with little investment experience complete the Portfolio Concepts 
and Management program prior to attending the Advanced Investments Management or 
specialized programs. 

Why You Should Attend 
Learn the core concepts and tools needed for effective portfolio oversight and continue to 
refine and heighten your knowledge with advanced and specialized programs-allIed by 
faculty of the prestigious Wharton School. 

2017 Wharton Programs 



About the Wharton School 
Partnership 

The Wharton School is recognized globa lly as the most comprehensive 
source of business knowledge in the world. For nearly 40 years the 
International Foundation has partnered with the Wharton School to create 
a number of educational opportunities, including the prestigious Certified 
Employee Benefit Specialist® (CEBS®) program in the United States* and 
high-quality investment programs. 

For over 60 years, the International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans has served as 
the largest educational association providing a premier source of objective, accurate and 
timely benefits education and information. 

The International Foundation offers membership with services such as personalized 
research, live and recorded webcasts, online peer networking, publications, survey results 
and daily industry news delivery. In addition, members receive discounts on educational 
programs, e-Iearning and books for all levels from basic concepts to advanced strategies. 
The International Foundation also sponsors the eEBS designation program with the 
Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in the United States and Dalhousie 
University in Canada. Learn more about how the International Foundation can help you
Visit www.ifebp.org or call (888) 334-3327, option 2, to request information by mail. 

Contents Page 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 

Refresher Workshop in Core 
Investment Concepts 

Advanced Investments Management 

Additional Contents 

Continuing Education Credit 

The Wharton School 
Learning Environment 

Program Location/Hotellnformation 

Faculty Information 

Registration Policies 

Program Registration Form 

4 

6 

7 

9 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 
*Canadian CEBS partner is Dalhousie University. 

(888) 334-3327, option 2 I www.ifebp.org/wharton 



Portfolio Concepts and Management 

TUESDAY, MAY 2 (Cant.) 
8:30 a.m.-12:00 noon 

Performance Evaluation 
• Elements of manager monitoring 
• Risk -adjusted measures 
• Factors behind the numbers 
• Role of investment style 
• What do the numbers in a performance 

evaluation report mean? 

• Using your performance measurement 
tools (practical framework) 

• Impact of investment policy 

12:00 noon-1 :00 p.m. 

Lunch 
Provided at the conference center 

1 :00-2:30 p.m. 

The Current Markets 
• Recent trends 
• Determining the discount rate 
• Historical risk and return patterns 
• The capital asset pricing model 
• Price distortions 

2:45-4:15 p.m. 

Matching Assets and Liabi lities in 
Public Pension Plans 
• The economist approach to discounting 
• Motivation 
• The numbers 
• Bonds vs. stocks 

4: 15-5:00 p.m. 

Introduction to Case Study 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 3 
7:30-8:30 a.m. 

Breakfast 
Provided at the conference center 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 3 (Cant.) 
8:30 a.m.-12:00 noon 

Macroeconomic Issues and Financial 
Markets 
• Basics of price and return 
• Monetary and fiscal policy structures 

and current stances 
• Exchange rates and international factors 

12:00 noon-1 :00 p.m. 

Lunch 
Provided at the conference center 

1 :00-4:15 p.m. 

Fundamentals of Valuation 
• How does an analyst determine the 

price of stock? 
• What determines the volatility of a bond? 
• Mechanics of compounding and 

discounting 
• Valuation of annuities 
• Present and future value 

4:15-5:30 p.m. 

Case Study Group Work 
(Dinner on your own) 

THURSDAY, MAY 4 
7:30-8:30 a.m. 

Breakfast 
Provided at the conference center 

8:30-11 :00 a.m. 

Asset Allocation and Impacts 
of Risk on Return 
• Trends in pension management 
• Investment policy 
• Overall asset allocation and allocation 

within asset class 
• Rebalancing vs. reinforcing asset 

allocation 

11 :00 a.m.-12:00 noon 

Case Study 
Attendance required to earn a certificate. 

(888) 334-3327, option 2 I www.ifebp.org/wharton 



Refresher Workshop 
in Core Investment Concepts 
Sunday, September 24, 2017 I 1 :00-5:00 p.m. 

Sheraton Philadelphia University City Hotel I Ph iladelphia, Pennsylvania 

If you plan to register for the Advanced Investments Management program 
and it has been some time since you participated in investment-related 
coursework, we strongly encourage you to also register for the refresher 
workshop. The workshop is scheduled for the Sunday afternoon immediately 
preceding the Advanced Investments Management program and will be 
held at the Sheraton Philadelphia University City Hotel. This is an optional 
workshop-Separate registration and additional fee are required. See the 
reg istration form for deta i Is. 

In this refresher workshop, you will review 
• Basic principles of portfolio theory 

- Risk and return 
- Diversification 

• How bonds and stocks are evaluated 
- Discounted value of coupons 
-Price/earnings (PIE) and other ratios 
- Mechanics of compounding and 

discounting 
-Duration 

• Styles of management used by fund 
managers for achieving investment 
objectives 

• Basic benchmarks used for 
measuring fund performance 
-Sharpe ratio 
-Alpha and beta 

• Benefits of global diversification 
• Types of real estate investments 
• Alternative investments 

-Hedge funds 
- Private equity 
-Commodities 

• The efficient market principle. 

2017 Wharton Programs 



Advanced Investments Management 
Monday, September 25-Thursday, September 28,2017 

The Wharton School I University of Pennsylvania I Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

Advanced Investments Management is a 3Y:z-day program that includes lecture/ 
discussion and an interactive case study, which demonstrates our commitment 
to setting the highest quality standards in investment management education. 
Advanced Investments Management is held every other year at the Wharton 
School on the University of Pennsylvan ia campus. 

This program is for those who have a solid grasp of investment management fundamentals 

and seek to learn more or have taken the Portfolio Concepts and Management program 
and are looking for the "next step:' It is assumed participants will already understand the 
basic principles of portfolio theory, performance evaluation and risk/return. 

While there are no formal prerequisites for this program, those without prior knowledge 

of fundamental investment theory will most likely find this program too advanced and are 
encouraged to register for the Portfolio Concepts and Management program. 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 25 
7:30-8:30 a.m. 

Breakfast and Registration 
Steinberg Conference Center 

8:30-10:00 a.m. 

Introduction and Performance Analys is 
• Structure and design of benchmarks 

• How to use benchmarks to measure 
fund performance and evaluate 
investment managers 

10:15 a.m.-12:00 noon 

Advanced Bond Management 
• Bond pricing 
• Interest rate risk 
• Risks faced by bond portfolios 
• Duration and convexity 
• Portfolio immunization and dedicated 

portfolios 

12:00 noon-1 :00 p.m. 

Lunch 
Provided at the conference center 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 25 
(Cant.) 

1 :00-2:15 p.m. 

Advanced Bond Management 
• Bond pricing 
• Interest rate risk 
• Risks faced by bond portfolios 

• Duration and convexity 
• Portfolio immunization and dedicated 

portfolios 

2:30-5:45 p.m. 

Advanced Asset Allocation 
• Asset allocation strategies 
• Asset allocation and the financial crisis 

• Weighting strategies 

(888) 334-3327, option 2 I www.ifebp.org/wharton 



Advanced Investments Management 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26 
7:30-8:30 a.m. 

Breakfast 
Provided at the conference center 

8:30-10:00 a.m. 

Evaluation of Managers 
• General risk-adjusted and style-based 

measures 
• Strengths, weaknesses and possible 

misuses of the measures 
• Latest trends in performance analysis 

10:15-12:00 noon 

Real Estate in a Pension Fund Portfolio 
• Risks and returns of different types of 

real estate investments 
• Long-run returns, risk and portfolio 

allocation to real estate 
• Growth of the REIT market 

12:00 noon-1:00 p.m. 

Lunch 
Provided at the conference center 

1 :00-4:15 p.m. 

Alternative Investments: A Discussion 
and Overview of Hedge Funds 
• Alternative investment allocations 
• Selecting the right manager and 

monitoring performance 
• Overall outlook for alternative investments 
• Pros and cons of hedge funds 

4:15-6:15 p.m. 

Introduction to Case Study and Case 
Study Discussion with Groups 
(Dinner on your own) 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27 
7:30-8:30 a.m. 

Breakfast 
Provided at the conference center 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27 
(CO NT.) 
8:30 a.m.-12:00 noon 

International Investing 
• How to measure the performance 

of foreign assets 
• International diversification and 

currency risk 
• Risks and returns on international 

bonds for a pension fund 
• Strategies to invest internationally 

with an exchange rate view 

12:00 noon-1 :00 p.m. 

Lunch 
Provided at the conference center 

1 :00-3:30 p.m. 

Pension Fund Valuation 
in the New World of Risk 
• The economist approach to discounting 
• The case for bonds vs. stocks 
• Matching assets and liabilities 

3:45-5:15 p.m. 

Macroeconomy 
• Impact of the macroeconomy on the 

environment in which financial markets 
operate 
- Key macroeconomic indicators; 

financial market responses 

5:15-6:30 p.m. 

Wrap-Up and Case Study 
Group work 
(Dinner on your own) 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 28 
7:00-8:00 a.m. 

Breakfast 
Provided at the conference center 

8:00-10:00 a.m. 

Investment Policy 

10:15a.m.-12:00 noon 

Case Study Discussion 
Required to earn a certificate 

2017 Wharton Programs 



Earning Your Certificate 

A certificate of completion from the Wharton School will 
be awarded to those who attend all sessions (please note, 
programs have early-evening group work sessions). 

If you wish to earn a certificate, please make your travel 
plans accordingly and leave early evenings open as 
indicated on the program schedule. 

Registration Includes 
• A curriculum binder including teaching materials and up-to-date resources 
• A certificate from the Wharton School upon fulfilling attendance and participation 

requirements 
• Daily breakfasts, lunch on all days that programs extend into the afternoon and 

refreshment breaks in the mornings and afternoons. 

Additional Class Notes 
• Registrants will be notified bye-mail when select materials are posted on the Wharton 

website that will serve as prereading for the program. 
• Please note that the scheduling of specific sessions and/or faculty is subject to change. 
• For questions on curriculum, please e-mail tiffanyu@ifebp.org or call (262) 373-7652. 

Continuing Education Credit 
Most state boards/departments that license professionals will accept International 
Foundation courses for their continuing education requirements if the course 
content is applicable. As a service to attendees, CE accreditation procedures have 
been implemented. This additional service is provided at a nominal administrative 
fee ($25) and must be paid by those requesting the service. If you are an insurance 
professional, please note that state insurance departments do not consider 
investment topics as appropriate for insurance continuing education credit. 
Therefore, insurance credit is not available for the Wharton investment courses. 
Visit www.ifebp.org/education/continuinged for information regarding earning 
continuing education credit for your profession. 

I have always walked away from the Wharton courses with more 
information than I expected. 

Brian Myers Cooper 
Union Trustee 

Equity League Benefit Funds 

(888) 334-3327, option 2 I www.ifebp.org/wharton 



Experience the Wharton School
Transforming Insight Into Practice 

Founded as the first U.S. business school in 1881, the Wharton School of 
the University of Pennsylvania has consistently driven change in business 
education and research. 

Wharton has approximately 4,600 undergraduate, M.B.A. and doctoral students and 
an alumni network of more than 80,000 worldwide. Wharton's Aresty Institute of 
Executive Education serves up to 8,000 mid- to senior-level executives annually. Taught 
by acclaimed Wharton faculty, more than 200 open enrollment and custom programs 
are offered in such areas as finance, leadership, strategy/management and marketing. 
World-class faculty teaching the courses include skilled educators and researchers, award
winning authors and leading authorities in the investment management field. 

V\fharton Investment Programs 
The International Foundation's partnership with the Wharton School includes four 
investment programs, which are offered on a rotating schedule. 

Core Programs (Held at the Steinberg Conference Center in Philade lphia, Pennsylvania) 
• Portfolio Concepts and Management (held annually) 
• Advanced Investments Management (held every other year) 

Specialty Programs (Held at the Wharton I San Francisco facil ity) 
• Alternative Investment Strategies (look for offering in 2018) 
• International and Emerging Market Investing (look for offering in 2019) 

The Wharton School Learning Environment 
Steinberg Conference Center 
Wharton School-University of Pennsylvania 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
The Steinberg Conference Center on the 
University of Pennsylvania campus offers a 
state-of-the-art, comfortable environment 
conducive to adult learning. Breakout rooms 
allow for small group discussions. Direct 
interaction with faculty is encouraged and 
aided by the limited class size. You will 
have access to the university bookstore 
and recreation facilities as well. 

201 7 Wharton Programs 



Program Location and 
Hotel Information 

The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 
and Advanced Investments Management 
The Wharton School 

University of Pennsylvania 

Aresty Institute of Executive Education 

Steinberg Conference Center 

255 South 38th Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19104-6359 

Phone: (215) 386-8300 

Fax: (215) 573-3426 

A ten-minute walk from Sheraton Philadelphia University City Hotel. 

Hotel Reservation Information 
(Refresher Workshop in Core Investment Concepts is held at the hotel.) 

Sheraton Philadelphia University City Hotel 

3549 Chestnut Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19104 

Phone: (215) 387-8000 
Fax: (215) 387-7920 

Reservations phone: (888) 627-7071 
www.philadelphiasheraton.com 

Portfolio Concepts and Management-$179 single/double occupancy (15.5% tax) 
Advanced Investments Management-$169 single/double occupancy (15.5% tax) 

(Credit card guarantee will be required.) 

The Sheraton is conveniently located on the campus of the University of Pennsylvania. 

Amtrak's 30th Street Station is just steps from the hotel. 

Please contact the hotel directly to make your reservation. Be sure to mention the International 
Foundation when booking your hotel stay to ensure you receive the negotiated conference 
guest room rate. 

(888) 334-3327, optio n 2 I www.ifebp .org/wharton 



- . ~ ", .'::-.. ' - .. ~- . - .: - . - . - -_. - . - - . ~ - ~ 

_ -. _ _ _. -. j'. • - . • I 

Wharton Faculty 

Wharton faculty members are skilled educators and researchers, award
winning authors and leading authorities in the investment management field . 

Following are the biographies of faculty members who taught sessions in the 
Internationa l Foundation/Wharton programs in the recent past. 

Gordon M. Bodnar 
Morris W Offit Professor of 

International Finance and 
Director of the International 
Economics Program 

The Wharton School 
Paul H. Nitze School of Advanced 

International Studies (SAIS) 
The Johns Hopkins University 

Dr. Bodnar teaches international finance 
in Wharton's Executive M.B.A. program 
and is a frequent lecturer in several of its 
executive education programs. He has 
held appointments as a research fellow 
at the National Bureau of Economic 
Research and as a visiting scholar at 
the International Monetary Fund. 
His research focuses largely on the 
intersection of international finance 
and corporate finance. 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 
Advanced Investments Management 
International and Emerging Market Investing 

Christopher C. Geczy 
Adjunct Associate Professor 

ofPinance 
Academic Director of 

Wharton Wealth 
Management Initiative 

The Wharton School 

Dr. Geczy researches and consults for 
clients in the areas of asset allocation, 
hedge fund portfolio analysis and 
development, financial risk management 
and the development of investment 
and trading strategies. He has a Ph.D. 
degree in finance and econometrics from 
the Graduate School of Business of the 
University of Chicago. 

Alternative Investment Strategies 
Advanced Investments Management 

Excellent teachers-stimulating in terms of content and delivery. 
They were skilled at ensuring that a wide range of backgrounds in 
the class are capable of following complex investment principles. 

Harold Redeko~p 
Management Trustee 

Musicians' Pension Fund of Canada 

2017 Wharton Programs 



G'eoffrey Gerber 
President & Chief Investment 

Officer 
TWIN Capital Management 
Faculty Member 
The Wharton School Aresty 

Institute 

As founder of TWIN Capital Management, 

Dr. Gerber is responsible for overseeing 
the management of the firm and the entire 

investment process and is recognized as 
a specialist in institutional quantitative 
investment management. Dr. Gerber is a 
faculty member for the Aresty Institute's 

Wharton Executive Education Program 
on pension funds and investment 

management. He received his Ph.D. 
degree in economics and finance from 

the University of Pennsylvania. 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 
Advanced Investments Management 

Jeffrey F. Jaffe 
Associate Professor of Finance 
The Wharton School 

Dr. Jaffe is an active 
researcher, with particular 
interest in the effect of inflation on the 

returns of stocks and bonds, valuation 
of the firm and the effect of regulation 
on trading by corporate insiders. His 

articles have appeared in the Quarterly 
Economic Journal, the Journal of Finance, 
the Journal of Financial and Quantitative 
Analysis, the Journal of Financial 
Economics and the Financial Analysts' 
Journal. 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 
Advanced Investments Management 

Wharton Faculty 

A. Craig MacKinlay 
Joseph P. Wargrove 

Professor of Finance 
The Wharton School 

Dr. MacKinlay is a research 
associate of the National Bureau of 
Economic Research, a member of the 

Journal of Investment Consulting Advisory 
Board and a member of Morgan Stanley 
Institutional Equity Trading Academic 

Board. He received his doctorate and 
an M.B.A. degree from the University 
of Chicago and an M.B.A. degree from 

the University of Western Ontario. 
His research interests include asset 
pricing models, measuring investment 

performance and statistical methods in 
finance. 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 
Advanced Investments Management 

Todd Sinai 
Associate Professor 

of Real Estate, Business 
Economics and Public 
Policy 

The Wharton School 

Dr. Sinai is a faculty research fellow at the 

National Bureau of Economic Research 
and a visiting scholar at the Federal Reserve 
Bank of Philadelphia. Current research 

projects include housing prices, public 
policy and housing markets, the airline 
industry and real estate investment trusts. 

He received his Ph.D. degree from the 
Massachusetts Institute of Technology. 

Alternative Investment Strategies 

(888) 334-3327, option 2 I www.ifebp.org/wharto n 



REGISTRATION POLICIES 

• See our policies regarding your registration/cancellation/refund/record retention/ 
photo release and privacy at www.ifebp.org/policies. 

• Cancellation/transfer requests must be in writing and are subject to a fee of $50 
per meeting day for cancellations and $50 for transfers. 

• Cancellation fee is 50% of registration fee for registrations canceled within 30 days 
of meeting. 

• Cancellations received on or after the opening day of a program are subject to 
forfeiture of all registration fees. 

• For more information regarding administrative policies such as 
complaint and refund, please contact Registrations at edreg@ifebp.org 
or (262) 786-6710, option 2. 

-

FEATURED BOOKS 

The books in the International Foundation Bookstore cover the entire spectrum of 
benefits. Industry professionals offer in-depth information on health care, pension, 
multiemployer trusts, government benefit programs and more. Get the insight and 
know-how to succeed. 

Visit www.ifebp.org/bookstore to view books offered. 
Employee Benefits Glossary 
13th Edition 
International Foundation 
International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans. 2016. 
$75 (Members: $49). Prices include shipping/handling. 
www.ifebp.org/books.asp?7570 

The Tools & Techniques of Investment Plann ing 
Stephan R. Leimberg; Robert J. Doyle, Jr.; 
Thomas R. Robinson; Robert R. Johnson 
623 pages. National Underwriter. 2014. 
$196.50 (Members: $188.) Prices include shipping/handling. 
www.ifebp.org/books.asp?9029. 

JOIN US ONLINE 
CONNECT I DISCUSS 
ASK I SHARE I LEARN 

#IFWharton 

2017 Wharton Programs 

.e o 



REGISTRATION/2017 
Wharton Investment Programs 

International Foundation :.i'l::;e 
OF EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS U .. J 

Customer Information (Please print clearly) 17WHARW 

IndividuallD# or CEBS® 10# __________________________ _ 

Full first name ___________ M.I. __ Last name _____________ _ 
Employer __________________________________ _ 

Title ___________________________________ _ 

Address __________________________ 0 Business 0 Home 

City ____________ State/Province __ Country __ ZIP/Postal code _____ _ 
Phone Fax __________________ _ 

E-mail 
Last 4/3 digits of SSN/SIN _________ Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) _______ _ 

o I give consentto receive future e-mail communications from the International Foundation. 
See policies regarding registration/cancellation/refund/reconl retention/photo release and privacy at www.ifebp.org/policies. 

Not a Member? Join Now and Save! 

o Individual $325* 0 Organizational $995* Join now and pay the lower member rate. 
*Membership dues are prorated quarterly. Visit www.ifebp.org/join for current U.S. and Canadian membership rates. 

Registration Information 

Organization representing _________________ _ 

Organization # ________________________ L... ________ ---I 

Badge name _______________ Badge title _______________ _ 

Special dietary requirements-specify _______________________ _ 

Form completed by Phone 

Portfolio Concepts and Management I Early fee until March 20 (04-1704) 
May 1-4, 20171 The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania 1 Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
Early Member fee 0 $5,095 Member fee 0 $5,395 
Early Nonmember fee 0 $5,535 Nonmember fee 0 $5,835 

Advanced Investments Management I Early fee until August 14 (63-1763) 
September 25-28,20171 The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania 1 Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
Early Member fee 0 $5,095 Member fee 0 $5,395 
Early Nonmember fee 0 $5,535 Nonmember fee 0 $5,835 

Refresher Workshop I Early fee until August 14 (63-PC01) 
September 24, 20171 Sheraton University City Hotel 1 Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
Early Member fee 0 $435 Member fee 0 $585 
Early Nonmember fee 0 $545 Nonmember fee 0 $695 
CANCEL POUCY: Early cancel fee is $50/meeting day. Within 30 days of meeting, cancel fee is 50"10 of registration fee. 

Hotel 

Mention the International Foundation for special rate . After the deadline, reservations and rate will be based on 
availability (c redit card will be required). 
May: Sheraton Philadelphia University City Hotel, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
Reservations phone: (888) 627-7071 Rate: $179 single/double (15.5% tax) Reservation deadline: April 10 
September: Sheraton Philadelphia University City Hotel. Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
Reservations phone: (888) 627-7071 Rate: $169 single/double (15.5% tax) Reservation deadline: September 5 

Continuing Education Credit 

$25 continuing education service charge due at time of registration (if applicable). 
The International Foundation will apply for CE credit based on requests. You must 
indicate the profession(s) for which credit is requested. 

o Actuary 0 Attorney 0 CFP 0 CIMA 0 CPA 

o PHR/SPHR/GPHR 0 Other, specify ___________ _ 

o CEBS CPE $25 CE fee does not 
apply. Visit www.cebscpe.org for 
additional information on reporting 
CEBS CPE credit hours. 

Licensed in the state(s) of ____________ _ License/NPN/BAR/CPA # _ ____ __ _ 

NOTE: Requests made for CE credit on this form do not guarantee administration of credit 

Payment Information Registration/Order Summary 

Full payment in U.S. funds must accompany order. 
Make check payable to International Foundation. 

Membership fee $ ___ _ 

o Check# $ _____ _ 
o VISA 0 MasterCard 0 Discover 0 American 

Express 
Credit card # ________________ _ 
Exp. date _______________ _ 

Cardholder's name (print) __________ _ 

Registration fee $ _ __ _ 

Registration fee $ ___ _ 

Continuing education fee ($25) $ ___ _ 

Total (U.S. funds) $ _ __ _ 

G Register online at www.ifebp.org ~ 
Mail the registration form with check or credit card number to: 
International Foundation-Conference, 

- P.O. Box 689954, Chicago, IL 60695-9954 o Fax your registration with credit card number: 
•• - (262) 364-1818 (D- For information, e-mail edreg@ifebp.org,orphonetoll-free 

m (888) 334-3327, option 2, or (262) 786-6710, option 2. 

45.3M-1116 



2017 Progra~ ·Offerings 

Portfolio Concepts and Management 
May 1-4, 2017 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

Refresher Workshop in Core 
Investment Concepts 
September 24, 2017 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

Advanced Investments Management 
September 25-28,2017 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 

Register by March 20 to save $300 
on the Portfolio Concepts and Management 
program with the early registration discount. 

Visit www.ifebp.org/portfol io to register 
or call (888) 334-3327, option 2, for more information. 

ED161280 

International Foundation .4 ~® 
OF EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN S U / 
18700 West Bluemound Road 
Brookfield, WI 53045 
www.ifebp.org 

Priority Code: 17WHAR F G H J 

Nonprofit Org. 
U.S. POSTAGE PAID 

INTERNATIONAL FOUNDATION 
OF EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 


	agenda 02.08.2017
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12



